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LOCAL HISTORY AND GENEALOGY SOCIETY
DA S

»
PROGRAM FOR FALL

Thursday, September 25, 1969 - Luncheon, Y. M. C. A.
12:00 Noon - 1:30 p.m.
TEXAS HOMES AND THEIR FOLK
Mrs. Richard R. Grammar

Thursday, October 9, 1969 - Board Meeting, Titche's Tea Room
12:00° Noon
Thursday, October 23, 1969 = Dallas Public Library,

7:30 = 9:00 P.M.
IN THE LAST RESORT - ADVERTISE
Mr, Wilson W. Crook, Jr.

Thursday, November 13, 1969 - Board Meeting, Titche's Tea Room
12:00 Noon

Thursday, November 20, 1969 = Luncheon, Y. M. C. A,
12:00 Noon - 1:30
Annual Business Meeting
SOURCES FOR GENEALOGICAL RESEARCH
IN THE TEXAS STATE ARCHIVES
Mrs. Fischer Osburn, Former Assistant
to the Director of Texas State Archives,
Austin, Texas

NO MEETINGS ARE HELD IN DECEMBER

Spring program will appear in December, 1969 Quarterly, which should reach you
about January 1, 1970.

FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE SOCIETY ACTIVITIES CONTACT:

Mr. Hershel W. Anderson, President

Local History & Genealogical Society

4012 Centenary Drive, Dallas, Texas 75225
Telephone: 361-1280

PLEASE SEND YOUR DUES TO THE VICE PRESIDENT - MEMBERSHIP
Mrs. Jeremiah Welch
2706 San Marcus
Dallas, Texas 75228
Dues are $6.00 per calendar year. Life Members pay $100.00; Patron Members

pay $25.00 per year, and Sustaining Members pay $25.00 per year. Please make
check payable to LOCAL HISTORY & GENEALOGICAL SOCIETY.
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HARMONY RIDGE CEMETERY
San Saba County, Texas
Submitted by Mr. Larry J. Gage
11319 Sharpview Drive, Houston, Texas 77072
(A1l legible markers copied July 28, 1969)

Harmony Ridge Cemetery is 10 miles east-northeast of San Saba and is three
miles north down a gravel road from U.S. Highway 190. It lies a mile west of
the Colorado River.

The cemetery is on land donated by two brothers, Mark and Andrew Oliver,
in the 1870s. Harmony Ridge Cumberland Presbyterian Church was built on ad-
jacent property in 1880. The church building also served Harmony Ridge School
until 1923. The remodeled building still stands.

The church, school and cemetery are named for Harmony Ridge community,
which was named shortly after the church was completed. The community is on a
ridge and the "harmony" came from a pioneer's comment that he had never seen
such harmony among people working together on a church building.

The cemetery is fenced, well cared for and still used.

The legible markers:
Sonny Boy BALLEW - 1919-1922
BENNETT (large marker, no dates, center of plot)
Alberta -- Sept. 26, 1912; Sept. 28, 1919
Elmo Franklin, son of A, & M. A, BENNETT -- Jan. 14, 1891,
May 21, 1908
Wayne B. -- Sept. 28, 1892; Jan. 3, 1950
Louisa C., daughter of Jacob and Senah BIRD -- July 19, 1861;
Jan. 26, 1879
Waldon BRANTON -- May, 1878; Nov., 1888
A. J. BROWN -- Aug. 1, 1839; Oct. 6, 1917 (Masonic)
Mrs. J. P. BROWN -- June 4, 1847; Aug. 23, 1906
Jim F. BROWN -- 1884-1962
William H. BROWN -- Jan. 28, 1869; May 11, 1955
F. M. CURRY -- Dec. 2, 1837; Sept. 1, 1919
Lavinia, wife of F. M. CURRY -- Aug. 20, 1845; Dec. 15, 1920
DAWSON -- Hillrie J., Nov. 14, 1890; --
Mintie Patton, Jan. 23, 1891; Mar. 10, 1950
Martha DAWSON -- 1861-1943
Baby FAVER -- 1916 (mortuary marker)
At Rest, W. M, FAVER (Note: in error, his name was William Nail Faver)-
Aug. 3, 1818; Mar. 8, 1904
Mary A. FAVER, Nov. 6, 1822; Feb. 12, 1907 (same marker)
""Soon again we hope to meet thee when the day of life is fled"
S. Marion, son of A. M. & Blanche FAVER -- Jan. 4, 1894; Apr. 6, 1899
J. H. (GI)LES (native stone; no dates; name barely legible)
Edvard Lee GRUMBLES -- July 20, 1905; May 21, 1908
GRUMBLES -- Jesse Lee, Mar. 13, 1884; Mar. 12, 1962
Sarah Emma, Aug. 5, 1885; Dec. 25, 1952
HALL -- James I., Nov. 10, 1862; June 12, 1913
Susie C., Dec. 29, 1867; Feb. 3, 1943
Willie P, HELLUMS -- Apr. 21, 1906; Jan. 30, 1948 (mortuary marker)
Elizabeth Johnson HELLUMS -- 1871-1939
A. J. HOWARD -- March 9, 1835; July (cq) 16, 1925 (Masonic)
Asa Jefferson HOWARD -- Texas, Pvt. Co. B, 4 Rgt Texas Inf, Confederate
States Army, March 9, 1835-Aug (cq) 16, 1925 (at foot of above grave)




Nancy Edna, wife of A. J. HOWARD -- Apr. 28, 1845; Feb. 10, 1927
Wiley G., son of A. J. & E. Howard -- Dec. 24, 1884; Mar. 17, 1893
HUFFSTETLER -- 1929 (Mortuary marker; name incomplete)
C. E. (Ed) HUFFSTETLER - 1899-1953
Infant son of T. C. HUFFSTETLER (mortuary marker; no dates)
HUFFSTETLER -- John H., Mar. 27, 1852; Apr. 14, 1933
Martha F., Jan. 23, 1862; June 25, 1933
Joseph Lee, son of J. H. & M. F. HUFFSTETLER -- Mar. 10, 1895; Dec. 4,1898
HUFFSTETLER -- Robert A., 1898-1968
Muriel T., 1903-19--
JOHNSON -- Ira A., 1891-1966
Ola Myers, 1891 --
Walter M. JONAS -- born and died July 6, 1884
JORDAN -- Willie C., 1857-1943
Ella V., 1861-1948
Jesse KEELE, son of H & M Keele -- Aug. 21, 1875; Sept. 10, 1894
John H. KIMBROUGH -- Died Nov. 13, 1878, Aged 52 yr., 8 m., 13 da.
LEWIS (large marker enclosed by iron fence; no names or dates)
Following smaller markers surround the large marker:
Cora Lewis THORNTON
Alice M.
S. M. LEWIS
Medora Renick LEWIS
J. Robert
C. Edgar
Maggie Thomas, Jun. 20, 1874; Mar, 31, 1950
Lovna (cq) J., daughter of M. L. & V. E. McELHANEY--March 7,1880; Nov.20,1890.
J. M. MAGEE (native stone; no dates)
Samuel A. MAGEE -- Sept. 30, 1880; Dec. 30, 1880
Dilla Burke MALONE -- June 26, 1866; July 5, 1924 (inside Howard fence)
Mrs. M. E. NOLENS (native stone; no dates)
OLIVER =-- Andrew Gordon, Feb. 9, 1878; Oct. 28, 1917
Hattie MaGee, May 26, 1885; Oct. 31, 1963
OLIVER -- A. J., Nov. 27, 1832; Oct. 30, 1919
C. A., Oct. 28, 1843; Feb. 21, 1920
Andrew J. OLIVER -- Texas, Cpl Co C 17 Regt Texas Inf. Confederate States
Army, Nov. 27, 1832, Oct. 30, 1919 (military marker at foot of above
grave)
Annie May OLIVER, wife of A. Oliver -- Jan. 10, 1891; Jun. 27, 1947
Arthur OLIVER -- July 14, 1872; Mar. 18, 1936; son of J.K.P. & M.C. OLIVER,
"A devoted son, brother, husband and most worthy citizen'
Our Baby, J.K.P. & M.C. OLIVER (No dates)
Bennie F. OLIVER, son of A. J. & C. A, Oliver -- Dec. 17, 1872;Apr.24,1875
Donel, son of J.K.P, & M.C. OLIVER -- Feb. 18, 1889; Aug. 2, 1911
OLIVER -- Father, J. K. Polk, June 8, 1846; Oct. 12, 1922
Mother, Margaret C., Feb. 4, 1853; Jan. 8, 1937
James Floyd OLIVER -- April 13, 1911; November 6, 1964
Our Mother, Jane, wife of Alex. OLIVER -- Feb. 2, 1805; Dec. 1, 1885
OLIVER =-- John Irvin, Dec. 7, 1883 --
Fannie Walker, Jan. 4, 1892; Apr. 2, 1946
OLIVER -- John T., 1870 ===
Elizabeth, 1883-1944
Larken OLIVER -- Apr. 27, 1885; Mar. 16, 1909
Katie OLIVER -~ Nov. 19, 1889; Sept. 18, 1906 (same stone)
Larmon E., son of J. S. & Minnie OLIVER -- May 7, 1898; Oct. 28, 1917
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OLIVER -- M, D. Oliver, Nov. 22, 1838; Mar. 22, 1916
Sarildia A., wife of M. D. Oliver, March 19, 1845; Jan. 5, 1904
(same mkr.)

Marcus D. OLIVER -- Texas, Sgt. Co. E, 4 Regt. Texas Cav, Confederate States
Army, Nov. 22, 1838, Mar 22, 1916 (military marker at foot of above
grave)

Mrs. Minnie OLIVER -- June 7, 1874; Jan. 6, 1902

OLIVER -- Newel S., Jan. 28, 1876; Sept. 8, 1909

Doris Risien, Oct. 23, 1880; June 14, 1963
Raymond OLIVER -- May 12, 1909; Dec. 27, 1968 (mortuary marker)
OLIVER -- Robert E. Lee, Feb. 13, 1880; May 21, 1962
Norma Risien, Jan. 30, 1883 - ===
Married June 6, 1909; their children: Norma Lee, Elsie, Marjorie,
Robert, Laurie
In Memory of Aunt Sal, Colored -- 1811-1878 (a former slave of Alex OLIVER

family)
Family of Will A. OLIVER (large stone in center of family lot); smaller
stones: Daisy Beatrice, 1901-1902 Will A. 1865-1952
Sarah Ellen, 1865-1935 Ernest L., 1889-1962
Arl Horton, May 3, 1886; Apr. 1, 1950

William T. OLIVER, son of M. D. & S. A, Oliver -- Jan. 10, 1870; Feb.7,1886
Zilda Ione, daughter of J.K.P. & M.C. OLIVER -- Dec. 27, 1895; Jan. 7, 1905
OWEN -- Adly P., Feb. 2, 1878; Mar. 29, 1944

Sarah E., Feb. 20, 1875; Mar. 20, 1958
Baby OWEN -- Jan. 8, 1904 (mortuary marker)
E. Travis (Sam) PATTON -- May 29, 1912; Feb. 8, 1937
PATTON -- James D., Feb. 14, 1847; Feb. 5, 1917

Lou Francis, Jan. 10, 1859; Nov. 3, 1944
Linnie, daughter of J. D. & Lou PATTON -- Aug. 8, 1882; Nov. 20, 1900
PATTON -- Mark O., June 5, 1887; Jan. 18, 1966
Effie B., Oct. 16, 1889; ===-
George William ROBBINS -~ Sept. 30, 1874; Sept. 26. 1942
Lily ROBBINS -- Dec. 29, 1923
Lonzo W. ROBBINS -- Dec. 29, 1923; Jan. 10, 1930
Motty B. ROBBINS -- Nov. 11, 1919; Oct. 30, 1950
M. M. SENTERFITT -- Jan. 8, 1836; Feb. 12, 1893 (Masonic)
Nettie SENTERFITT -- Oct. 6, 1882; Jan. 21, 1908
R. Jack SENTERFITT -- Nov. 15, 1925; Nov. 30, 1955
Reuben E. SENTERFIIT, Sr., -- 1875-1953
Rodney SENTERFITT -- 1887-1918
SENTERFITT -- Roscoe C., Apr. 9, 1885; June 8, 1959
Maude May, Sept. 28, 1890; Mar. 24, 1938

Alvin L, SMITH -- Aug. 4, 1910; Nov. 17, 1910 (near T. A. Smith grave)
David L. SMITH -- Mar. 25, 1907; Sept. 6, 1955
Dorothy B. SMITH -- Dec. 29, 1911; Jan. 1, 1912 (near T. A. Smith grave)
SMITH -- Elbert W., 1881-1962

Jessie P., 1886-1962
Gladys P. SMITH -- Aug. 29, 1910; Oct. 9, 1963 (adjacent to David L.Smith)
James I. SMITH -- Texas, Pvt., Air Corps, Dec. 17, 1913; Dec. 16, 1942
L. B. SMITH -- Mar. 13, 1858; Oct. 20, 1939 (near T. A, Smith grave)
Lewis A. SMITH -- Apr. 3, 1909; Dec. 22, 1910 (near T. A. Smith grave)
SMITH -- Thomas Andrew (Fox), Dec. 1, 1881; Oct. 27, 1957

Beatrice Oliver, Jan. 27, 1884~ --:-
Velma, wife of F. E. SMITH -- Feb. 7, 1879; Mar. 22,1918(in M.D,Oliver plot)
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William J. SMITH -- Father, Feb. 29, 1872; Jan. 30, 1925
Annie L. SMITH -- Mother, Aug. 30, 1881; Apr. 9, 1957 (separate stones)
Mrs, E. M, STOCKTON -- Feb. 8, 1866; Dec. 10, 1902
William A. TAFF, husband of Elizabeth Taff -- Mar. &, 1834; Oct. 15, 1879
TANNER -- Rev. T. J., Sept. 21, 1887; Mar. 6, 1941
Lucile, Oct. 7, 1893; =--=

A, J. WALKER =- Mar. 3, 1862; Jun. 22, 1950
Sarah J., wife of A. J. WALKER -- Apr. 23, 1867; June 6 1891
Mother, Sarah A, WALKER -- Sept. 16, 1835; Nov. 13,
Samuel Collis (cq) WARD =-- Apr. 25, 1901; Sept. 19, 1901
Fannie I., wife of W. H. WATKINS -- Feb. 26, 1856; March 3, 1894
J. M. WEEMS, born in Miss. Nov. 7, 1817; died July 11, 1890
Polk, son of J. M. & M. E, Weems -- July 16, 1885; Nov. 27, 1886
Mrs. Catherine WILLIS -- Dec. 22, 1822; Aug. 6, 1905

"A mother of Israel at rest"
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SOME EARLY DEEDS
MORGAN COUNTY, KENTUCKY

GRANTEE

Montgomery, William
Montgomery, Michael W.
Montgomery, James H.
Montgomery, Joseph
Montgomery, John
Montomery, Levi
Evans Evan

Evans & Hunt

Calvin Cox

Calvin Gillispie
Francis Kincion
William Harrison Cole
James H. Montgomery
W. G. Oakley

Elijah Smith
Montgomery Levi
Montgomery Levi
Montgomery Johnny
Cole Harmon

Cole William Harrison
Cole W. H.

Cole Joseph

Cole James H.

Cole J. H.

Cole Jesse

Cole James H

"

"
"

Cole, Joseph
Cole, James M.
Cole, Virginia

FROM

GRANTOR

William Trimble
Christine Epperheart
Joseph Montgomery
J. W. Hazzelrigg
John Williams
Caley Cash

James Montgomery
James Montgomery
James Montgomery
Williams Montgomery
William Montgomery
M. W. Montgomery
Joseph Montgomery
Joseph Montgomery
Sarah Montgomery
James Kash

Fannie Bays
Elizabeth Montgomery
James G. Hazelrig
M. W. Montgomery
William Kendall
William Kendall
Madison Blanton

J. W. Hazelrig
Joseph Cole

Nannie Sargent

B. F. Thomas
Gordon Lewis Heirs
William Cooper
Mattie Hutchinson
John L. Henry
James Pennington




EXCERPTS FROM THE JOURNAL OF ARA WILLIAMS SABIN
Submitted by Mrs. H. D. Welch
2513 Crestbrook, Grand Prairie, Texas

My ancestors were of Scotch and Dutch in origin: My father, Salmon Sabin,
was the youngest son of Josiah Sabin, who was the second son of Israel Sabin, a
Scotchman; my mother, Sarah Miller, the third daughter of Garret Miller of
Saratoga County, N. Y., was married to my father in the year of our Lord, 1816.

After residing in the town of Bath six years, I was born August the &4th,
1822. I was the fourth child. My father still resided in the town of Bath,
Stueben County, N. Y., until I was fourteen years old and removed to Ontario
County, N.Y, living there three years and then removing to Ohio, Huron County, in
which time nothing of importance passed my observation, At the time I lived in
Ohio I very well recollect hearing about the persecution of a religious society
known by the name of Mormons. All manner of slander that man could invent was
hurled at their leaders, and even the whole society was banished from the state
of Missouri in the cold and dreary month of December in the year of our Lord 1839,
to the state of Illinois, where they commenced building a city called Nauvoo.

By this time the country not suiting my father, he moved back to Bristol,
Ontario County. I stayed with my father until I was one and twenty years old,
and in the fall after,I returned to the place of my nativity. Here I became
acquainted with one of the Elders of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day
Saints, by the name of William Hyde, and by his hing I became a
with the doctrine of the Church and convinced of its truth, I thought it my duty
to become a member of the society.

I was baptised February 18, 1844, by the said William Hyde, in Allegany
County, in the town of Ossian, N. Y., while on a visit to my uncle, William Card's.
I then went to work in that place for the sake of having the privilege of attend-
ing the meetings that I might gain instruction in the great plan of salvation and
other points of doctrine.

In June I visited my parents for the first time after I had connected myself
with the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints, and found them enjoying
good health and apparently glad to see me, but not to hear that I had joined the
Mormons, as they called them. After I talked with them on the principle and plan
of salvation as I believed it, they held their peace.

In the fall of 1844 I commenced fixing to go West with a company of Saints
to gather with the Church of Christ in Nauvoo. The company consisted of four
families, myself, and Brother F. A. Brown, in company with them. Doctor McIntyre
and family, Brother West and family, Brother Basset, and family, and Brother
Beach and family, in whose family I belonged while on the journey. The company
consisted of twenty-one souls.

While living in Ossian I became acquainted with some that I shall always
think of as friends, for such I found them to be in time of need, and my prayer
is for God to bless them with many blessings.

A journal of the proceedings and places through which we passed in going

from Ossian, Allegany County, N. Y. to Nauvoo, Ill.

We started from Ossian Sept. 11, 1844, We arrived at Mr. Olny's the first
day, distance ten miles. Nothing of any importance to me passed my observation
except the parting with friends which we did not expect to ever see again while
here on earth. On the morning of the second day we left Mr. Olny's and that day
we passed through Portage where we viewed the wonderful works of nature and the
far famed Genesee, winding its way through the mighty rocks which are piled upon
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each other to the height of about two hundred feet perpendicular, and also the
mystic works of art where numbers of men have worked and ~- - -

Nothing of any importance happened until Dec. 17, 1847, when we had some-
thing of a snow storm. The snow fell about two feet on the level. That day
Brother Joseph France and Brother C. H. Bassett arrived from the Bluffs where
they left the saints in good health, generally speaking.

1 saw Brother Bassett at old Mr. Canfield's and had some little conversation
with him about the saints in general, and I also saved some of the saleratus
which was found on the route to the valley and this side of the mountains in the
great American desert. Nothing worthy of notice transpired during the winter.
Time glided swiftly by, and 1847 soon passed into eternity.

March 19, 1848, I was married to Miss Sally Canfield of Ossian, Allegany
County, New York, with whom I was acquainted for three or four years. All things
necessary for the occasion were prepared and we had a first rate time.

April 10, 1848, I started in company with Brothers F. A. Brown, C. H. Bassett,
and J. France with our effects to the valley of the great Salt Lake. We hired
wagons and teams to carry us to Pittsburgh and there we shipped aboard the steam
boat for St. Louis.

We had a very good voyage, nothing of any importance took place on our route
thus far. At St. Louis we took a boat for Weston in Missouri. We arrived there
without any accident, then we took a boat for St. Joseph, to which place we
arrived in safety. From this place we travelled in wagons for the Bluffs, dis-
tance 140 miles

While travelling to this place my wife took sick, though we still pursued
our journey, difficult as it was for me. It was a great deal of care on my mind
seeing the health of my wife on the decline and the long journey before me. It
made my heart ache within me to think of staying at Council Bluffs or at the
Point, but as fortune would have it, I was obliged to stop at Council Point at
which place my wife stayed in company with her sister in care of Bro. William
Hyde.

Labor being scarce here, myself and Bro. Brown went away to work to get
means to go to the valley the next spring. About the first of August I was
attacked with a billious fever. After that, I received a letter from my wife
informing of the delicate situation of her health and a wish for me to return home.

My feelings better felt than described, altho I started immediately for home.
I arrived home about the 20th of September, my health rather impaired, and my
wife's very poor, not able to sit up more than two or three hours in the course
of the day.

I had the ague and fever in all its horrid forms and shapes. In November I
broke it up. My wife being at Dr. Luke Johnson to be doctored about this time,

I moved my things to the house where I calculated to stay until spring and then
go to the valley. About the middle of December my wife was taken worse, and -
began to run down in spite of all we could do for her. Nothing that I could do
was left undone, but all seemed to no purpose. She lingered along until the
sixth of January at 25 minutes past 11 o'clock in the evening, the Lord God of
Israel took her home where sickness and sorrow never comes.

At that time I was not able to cut my own stove wood after it was drawed to
my door. I was taken with a relapse about a week before the death of my com-
panion. The relapse of ague stuck to me till the next May. I saw some hard
times that winter and spring. I lived about from place to place. I lived about
two months with Brother Rosel Hyde and near three months with Brother G. R. Grant.
While at Bro. Grants I received a visit from Messrs. Addison and George West. I
parted with them seventeenth day of May 1849. They were bound for the gold
regions of California. (To be continued)
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THE DALLAS HERALD
Issue of 16 February, 1856
(continued)

Grayson Co

The friends of the Hon. Nat M. Burford, District Judge elect of the 16th Judicial

District, will give a dinner in Sherman, Grayson Co.,on the 5th March 1856.

Superintendents:

Jonathan Thompson H. C. Hendricks B. W. Bradley

E. M. Jones William D. Fitch Prank Richards

J. P. Dumas John P, Hutchinson Thomas T. Shannon
Henry R. Mann Wm. C. Saunders Thos. W. Randolph
Nathan Coffey N. W. Towns Robert E. Creel
A. M, Alexander William C. Young Calvin Jackson

M. T. Pence and Z. Ray appointed administrators of the estate of William C.Pence,

deceased, of Grayson Co.

Nathaniel B. Anderson of Grayson filed a petition against the heirs of Edmund
Underwood. N. W. Towns Attorney for Anderson.

John H. Wilson on 6th Feb. 1856 filed in Grayson Co. against the unknown heirs of

James M. Reynolds, alleging that on &4 May 1852 he purchased of one Algernon
Thompson 980 acres by virtue of a Bounty Land Warrent for 1280 acres issued to
James P, Womack, located in Grayson Co. Wilson charges Thompson also sold the
land to James M. Reynolds.

Hill Co.
From the issue of 9 February, 1856
R. G. Hart and William Veale, attorneys at Hillsboro. References: Hon. G. P.
Scarburd, Wm. and Mary College; Gen. R. Davis, Aberdeen, Miss.; Wm. Alexander,
Galveston; Hon. J. Wilcox, San Antonio.

Issue of 5 April, 1856
Caldwell Co.
A newspaper, The Southern Watchman, is published at Lockhart, edited by Fulton
and Logan.

Cherokee Co.
Another new newspaper, The Texas Enquirer, published at Rusk, edited by W. T.
Yeomans .
Collin Co.'
James P, Dumas, a citizen, filed a note given him by James Runnels.
Signed. J. J. Harrisom, J.P., Collin Co.

Dallas Co.
Democratic Ticket
Electors for the State at Large Frank W. Bouden and W. R. Scurry
District Electors A. J. Hood A. J. Hamilton
Sub-elector for 16th Judicial Dist. John J. Good of Dallas
For Comptroller James B. Shaw of Travis
For Treasurer James H. Raymond of Travis
For Attorney General James Willie of Washington
For Surveyor of Denton Land District A, G. Walker
For Sheriff of Dallas Co. Silas Leonard and A. G. Haught for reelection
County Clerk of Dallas W. K. Master and W. W. Peak for reelection
- §r=




Justice of the Peace, Precinct #1 John J. Eakins
Allen Byard
James M. Browder
G. W. Guess
Position now held by T. C. Hawpe
For Treasurer of Dallas Co. R. J. West for reelection

An error was discovered in the vote for district attorney. Col. McCoy rec'd 273
not 373 votes. Now the race is very close between Easton and McCoy.

C. H. Patrick of Lancaster has taken up and killed 14 stray hogs.

Whereas P. R. Lively et al, heirs at law of John Smith, deceased, praying for a
- partition of the estate, notifies Levonia L. Skagga, Calvin Smith and Mary B.
Smith, residents of Teas to appear ...

Strayed animals were taken up in Dallas Co. by the following:

John Robinson

D. L. Harris and estrayed before John M. Siller, J.P. and appraised by Wm. W.
Keen and John T. Corcoran.

Wm. J. Walker and estrayed before A. Beard, J.P. and appraised by J. P. Stratton
and H. McDowell

Charles E. Kingston. Appraised by W. Carter and Wm. J. Coburn.

John M. Crockett will sell his residence.
Dr. D. B. Thomas, eight years in his profession, is located at Crutchfield House.
James A. Smith has ginned cotton for sale, 7 miles north of Dallas,

James T. Sutphin, general agent and collector. Office 4 miles west of Plano on
the head of Spring Creek, offers his services to all in North - Western Texas -
Dallas, Collin, Denton, Hopkins and Hunt Cos.

Denton Co.
Animals taken up by Butler Dudley, living near the southeast corner of Denton
Co., signed by A. P. Lloyd

Ellis Co.
Letters of administration granted to W. D. Sims of Probate Court, Ellis Co., on
the estate of A, C. Low, deceased. Waxahachie, March 2.

Grayson Co.
Nathaniel B. Anderson, a resident citizen of Grayson Co., filed suit against the
unknown heirs of Edmund Undersood, Dec'd.

John B. Black filed a petition claiming David Barney didn't pay Vincent B. Tims.
Benj. W. Bradley, Clerk. W. G. Reynolds, Sheriff.

Kaufman Co.
Animals taken up and estrayed before J.T. Royal, J.P., appraised by Fred Ezell
and A. T. Nichols.
Animals taken up by William R or H. Carter, estrayed before J.T. Rayel, J.P.,and
appraised by William Turner and E. C. Tinnen.
Animals taken up by John Yates, estrayed before Albert Hendrix, J.P.,and appraised
by Allen Tilly and J.C. Jones. Signeg by S.E. Noble, Clerk, Kaufman Co.




Lamar Co.
The Frontier Patriot at Paris, edited by Junius Forster is a new newspaper. It
announced that the Hon. Wm. M. Williams is to be a candidate for Judge of the
8th Judicial District.

Red River Co.
The McKenzie Institute, 3 miles west of Clarksville, made the following announce=-
ment of its staff.
Male Dept. teachers: Rev. J.W.P. McKenzie, principal; Smith Ragsdale, B,F.Fuller,
J.T. Kennedy, J.N.B. Hensell
Female Dept-teachers: Martha Ragsdale, Smith Ragsdeale,
Voice and instrumental music: D. Danforth

Tarrant Co.
Animal taken up by E.A. Bates and estrayed before I.J. Wilson, J.P. and appraised
by C. C. McKinney and J.P. McKinney.

Issue of 10 May, 1856
Dallas Co.

Terrible storm at Cedar Hill-a tornado felt at Mr. Rapes, better known as the old
place of U, Bagget. Swept away residence of Wm. C. Hart of Cedar Hill, injuring
him severely. Dwelling and storehouse of Mr. Berry, partner of M. M. Miller of
Pleasant Run was dashed to pieces. Mr. Berry and Henderson Hart took refuge in
Berry's house just in time to be in the house when it was dashed to pieces-killing
all the inmates except H. Hart, who is dangerously wounded. In this family
(Berry) five persons were killed, Mr. Berry, his wife, child, Mr. Dickson, a
clerk in the store and a negro woman.

Mr. John Hart and family were the next sufferers. Himself, wife and child were
killed. Mrs. Allen, wife of Jacob Allen, is the next in the list of fatal cas

Corrected list of the wounded.

Henderson Hart dangerously- (skull fractured)

Wm. C. Hart severely

James Donaldson severely

Wm. Spence severely

Jacob Allen slightly

2 children of Mr. Allen slightly

Thomas Hart and wife

A. White and wife

Mr, Hartman.
The tornado demolished the residences of Milton Merrifield, Mr. Vaught, the
Methodist Church and Camp Ground Houses. It next blew down the houses of Mrs.
Donaldson, Mr. James Stewart and H. K. Brotherton. Some of Mr. Brotherton's
family were slightly injured. The last damage was at Thomas Harris' on Five
Mile on the Dallas Lancaster Rd. No damage done to people.

Bodies were brought by Mr. Nugent to Mr. Little's.

(to be continued next issue)
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PARISH/PARRISH NOTES
Made by Ione Nolan on Parish/Parish/Parrishes of Morth GaEsltna
Submitted by Mrs. R. E. Disl
10609 Longmeadow Dr., Dallas, Texas

David Parrish - will dated August 20, 1789, of record in Oxford, Granville
County, North Carolina, named:
wife: Juda (Judy)
sons: David Parrish
Claburn Parrish
Baseker (Boocker ?, Booker ?) Parrish (not one of the heirs, but named
as the father of 2 granddaughters who were heirs.)
daus: Salley (Sally) Parrish
Judy Parrish
Betty Parrish
Anne (Ane) Parrish
Sabry (Sabra) Waldrup
Sucke (Sukey) Whicker
gr. daus:
Dicy (Dicey) Parrish ) (Daus. of Baseker (Boocker ?, Booker ?)
Taby (Tabby) Parrish ) Parish)
Nancey (Nancy) Parrish (Parents not identified)

Judith Parrish, dau. of David Parrish, m. Claiborn Parrish, February &4, 1779;
David Parrish, bondsman.
Claiborn Parrish died in 1795, and on November 23, 1799, Judith, his widow,
m. Zachariah Dutton.
Names of 3 children of Claiborn and Judith Parrish are known; if others, no
data is available for this record. They are:
Joseph Parrish, b. May 4, 1794. On February 10, 1809, George Daniel
was appointed his guardian.
Oney Parrish, m. John Dutton, son of Zachariah Dutton, Judith's
second husband.
Humphrey Parrish - in 1804, Jesse Hays was appointed his guardian.
On November &4, 1805, Zachariah Dutton was appointed his guardian.

Claiborn Parrish left some sort of a contract to protect Judith's property,
which contract was made a part of her marriage agreement with Zachariah
Dutton. A copy of this instrument has not been obtained for this record.

Who were the parents of Claiborn Parrish, the first husband of Judith Parrish?
Claburn Parrish, son of David Parrish who left the will dated in 1789.

What happened to this Claburn? Did he marry, if so, whom? Did they have
children and if so, who were they?

In connection with the settlement of David Parrish's estate, a sale was held
in 1792. Among the purchasers were: Robert Jeter, William Parish, Clebe
(Claburn) Parish, Bishop Hicks, Judith Parish the younger (wife of Claiborn),
Mrs. Judith Parrish (the widow), Lewis Parish and Joseph Booker.

(The instrument pertaining to this sale is recorded in WB-2, P-324, in
Granville County.)

& s




3.

Claborn Parrish, in 1832, while living in Granville County, N. C., made an
application for a pension for his Revolutionary Service. He stated in the
application that he was uncertain about his exact age, but thought he was 7
years old when he had come to Granville County in 1767 with his father; that
he, Claiborn, had served in the Revolution while he was living in Orange
County, N. C.; had moved back to Granville County around 1813 and that about
1803, his father had moved to Georgia and had taken all the family records
with him. He did not mention his father's name. Who was he?

Attached to the pension paper was an affidavit of Allen Parrish which identi-
fied him as a brother of Claiborn Parrish.

The amount of Claiborn's pension was $20 per annum, starting March 4, 1831.

Claiborn Parrish left a will of record in Granville County, which was dated
1834, with a codicil dated 1836, and named:
wife: Polly (A name often used interchangeably with Mary.)
sons: Sihon Parrish

William Parrish
daus: Christian Forsythe

Nancy Worsham

Polly Mangum

Beady Umstead

Eady (Caty) Jones

Patsy Moore
gr. dau:

Rheaney (Reeny) Parrish

(Christian Forsythe, named as one of Claiborn's children in this will, was
his dau. Christian who m. Samuel P. Forsythe, August 4, 1835, in Granville
County, N. C.)

Claiborn Parrish - estate settlement, included:

Cash income of $8.25 received from pension.

This item undoubtedly identifies this Claiborn as the same one who made the
application for the pension whose father left Granville County about 1803 and
moved to Georgia.

The copy of the instrument pertaining to the estate settlement as obtained
from the courthouse in Oxford, N. C., omitted the following details:

Capt. Alfred Jones was the administrator for the estate of Claiborn Parrish,
deceased, and also was the administrator of the estate of Mrs. Mary (Roberts)
Parrish, Claiborn's widow, who died 3% months after Claiborn died.

Cash paid for moving Mrs. Parrish to Frances Worsham (2 days with wagons and
horses)

Cash paid Nancy Roberts for her attendance

Cash paid Mary (Roberts) Parrish, widow of Claiborn Parrish

Cash paid Robert Mebane

Cash paid F. H. Worsham for keeping Mary for 3% months

Cash paid William Parish for helping save the crop

Cash paid to Samuel Forsythe for spirits

Cash paid to Mr. Wortham for coffin and shrouding clothes
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Cash paid to William Parish for burial expense
Cash paid to F. H. Wortham for hauling the deceased, Mary Parish, 17 miles,
and going to Worthams 40 miles back and forth 2 days to haul the widow's
property back to be sold in accordance with the terms of Claiborn's will
Cash paid to Mark Roberts for holding the sale - August Court 1837

Sion Parish m. Sura Pettigrew, August 20, 1805, in Orange County, N.C.;
Hansel Pettigrew, bondsman.

Sion Parish died in 1817, in Granville County; Susan, his widow was appointed
administratrix of his estate on May 8, 1817; Wit: Charles Pettigrew. Sion
Parish who married in 1805, was evidently the same Sion who died in 1817.

Who were the parents of this Sion Parish? Did he have children, and if so,
who were they?

Sion Parrish m. Celia Robards (Roberts), December 9, 1808, in Granville
County, N.C.; George Roberts, bondsman.

This Sion Parrish died in 1826, and George Roberts, evidently the father of
Celia, was appointed by the court in Granville County, in 1826, to be guardian
of the orphans (minors) of Sion Parish, deceased.

The orphans were:
Jeremiah Parrish
Temperance Parrish
Polly Parrish
Claiborn Parrish
Brodie Parrish
George Parrish

Who were the parents of this Sion Parish? What happened to Celia, his widow?
Sion Parrish m. Sarah Adams, November 22, 1823, in Granville County.

The two old marriage bonds for Sion and Celia and for Sion and Sarah were
definitely signed by two different Sion Parrishes.

Who were the parents of Sion Parrish who married Sarah Adams?

Sion and Sarah had several children born to them in Granville County and
these they took with them to Carroll County, Tennessee, when they moved
there aroung 1828. They also took along the orphans of Sion and Celia.
What was the relationship of the two Sions? Did Sion and Sarah adopt the
orphans? Or did Sion get appointed their guardian? Did Celia go along
with them?

% ok ok ok ok ok ok Kk ok K
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PINKARD LETTERS
Submitted by Mrs. J. R. Macdonald
6415 Meadow Rd., Dallas, Texas 75230

The letters excerpted below were written by Benjamin J. Pinkard to his half
sister, Lucinda Pinkard Adams, who lived in Iuka, Tishimingo County, Mississippi.
B. J. Pinkard was born in Georgia, lived for a time in Tishimingo County, and
moved to Hill County, Texas sometime after 1880.

The N. J. or Nancy of the letters is his wife; Churchy and Futrnie are sons of
Lucinda P. Adams. Lou is Churchy's wife; Churchy drowned in 1892. Jonah is
Benjamin Pinkard's half brother.

The letters date from 1885-1893; nothing is known of B. J. Pinkard after
1893, 1In 1894 Lucinda Pinkard Adams moved with her son, Furnie, to Louisiana.

March 1, 1885
Hillsboro, Hill Co.
Mrs. L. C. Adams

My dear sister,

I seat myself to answer yore kind and most welcome letter that I received a
few days ago. I was glad to here from you and to here that you was well. Me and
Nancy are both well and hope you all are the same. I haven't any news to write
that would interest you. We will begin planting week after next if we don't have
too much rain. We have gardened some. We have set out one galon of onion sets
and planted irish potatoes and english peas and parsnips, sowed mustard and letus.
We have one row of multiplying shalotts about 20 steps long. I aim to eat onions
this year and potatoes and greens of all kinds.

Cinda, it is a hard matter for a man to tell just precisely what kind of a
countery this is in a letter, though it is a fine countery of a seasonable year.
It is no trouble to make one bale and more of cotton to the acre and 50 bushels of
corn to the acre and more some times, and of a dry year no less than half bale to
the acre if it is broke deep in winter and worked well in spring. Corn if managed
well in spring and summer, it will make 35 to 45 bushels to the acre. A man has
to stir his stumps in the spring. Land must be broke deep in faul or winter.

This is a great deal better ¢ountery than any I have ever seen for farming.

Well, Cinda, I wish you was out here. I believe you would be better satis-
fied though you might not. I wouldn't advise anyone to come out unless they were
perfectly satisfied to come.

Well, Cinda, we would be so glad to see you and Lou and her fine boy and
Churchy and Furnie. I believe I would feel verry near 20 years younger. Perhaps
we may see each other some day, I hope so any how. If I ever get able I intend to
come to see you all. This letter is from me and Nancy to you and Lou and Churchy
and Furnie. Mattie and Caline send there love to you. Tom Long's wife is dead.

I hope to here from you all soon. Mr. and Mrs. McMurray send there lov~ and
respects to you all. From yore brother and sister.
B. J. and N. J. Pinkard
kok ok ok ok ok k ok ok ok ok
May 18, 1885
Hillsboro, Hill Co.,Texas
Mrs. L. C. Adams

My dear sister,

I tonight seat myself to write you a few lines to let you know that I haven't
forgot you yet. I wrote to you some time ago a letter in answer to one I got from
you. I wrote eight pages of this kind of paper. I recon it was too much. I will
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not write so much this time.

Me and Nancy are both well and Mr. McMurray and family are all well. We hope
these few lines will find you all enjoying the same blessing.

Cinda, we have a fine prospect for a crop. People are verry late this year
about planting their cotton. We finished planting our cotton last Saturday, the
16 of this month. That was the last Saturday it hadn't rained in about 4 or 5
weeks. Me and Mr. Mc. has 25 acres in cotton. 5 acres is up and the balance is
coming up and we have 25 acres in corn.

This is as fine a country as a man need to want to see. It is a splendid
farming countery and it is a healthy countery. The water is not like the most of
people say it is. It is true enough the black mud sticks bad in winter season.

It don't bother much in spring and sumer for the top of the ground soon drys off.

I most know that old countery looks verry badly worin. I know I coculdn't never
content my self back there. Mattie told me to tell you that she had the prettyest
little girl you most ever saw and as smart as she can be. Mattie talks a heap
about you sometimes. Says she would like the best kind to see you. I haven't saw
George Moody in a long time. I live four miles from him.

We have got a fine garden, plenty of vegetables of all kinds and we are rais-
ing lots of chickens. We have bought two milk cows. We get plenty of milk and
butter. Write soon and fail not to tell all to write and to tell everything.

B. J. and N. J. Pinkard
*ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok
Hillsboro Hill Co., Texas
April 25, 1886
Mrs. L. C. Adams

My dear sister,

It is with pleasure that I seat myself to answer yore kind and most welcome
letter that I received yesterday. I was glad to here from you and to know that
you all was well. We are all well and hope you all the same. It has been a long
time since I have herd from you. I thought you was not going to write any more.
It does me a heap of good to get a letter from you.

Cinda, I want you to come out here and live with me and Nancy a while and
take a view of Texas. It is a fine counterry and a first class farming countery
and as healthy a counterry as a man ever lived in. If a person will come here and
wean themselves from there old home and be satisfied and set there head to make
something and be contented with there situation it will be no trouble to make a
good living. But it is no use for a person to come here unless they intend to
stay. I am better satisfied than any man you ever saw. Texas just suits me. I
consider that I am getting along splendid, I come here without any thing at all
only one dollar and seventy five cents and I am still holding my own except the
change I got here with I soon spent it. But I still live in hopes like all other
people.

I am writing like I wanted you all to come out here which I do, but I will
tell you one thing. If a person goes to a new countery they must go to stay and
be satisfied. If they think they cain't be contented it is best to stay where
they are at. But I know this is away ahead of the state you live in. That countery
is verry poor for it was that way before I left there and I know it is wors now.

A person can never promise themselves much back in them old states. Though I am
this way about things, if a person has got a poor home and it is paid for and
plenty around them and they are well satisfied, it is best for them to stay with it.
I don't want to persuade any boddy against there own will. I don't have any idea
that my writing to you all to come out here will do any good at all, but I have
told the truth about this country. When it rains here the mud is verry bad to
stick., It sticks sorter like sweet gum, but it don't last long, not more than one
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day at the time, sometimes a little longer and some times not that long, but that
does not hurt anything, it don't stick so bad. A man can pick more cotton_ here
than they can back there. I averaged 250 pounds everry day last faul. The most
I picked in one day was 301 pounds. I picked verry near 300 several days.

I am cultivating 43 acres, 10 acres in corn and I am going to sow 3 acres
in millet. I am going to plant 30 acres in cotton. I bought a good share of
mules and a wagon and a southern cliper turning plow and a :oultivator and corn
and cotton planter all combined. I can ride and coultivate all my crop. I bought
all of those things on 2 years time the whole outfit for farming cost me $296.00.
I think I can certainly pay for them in that length of time, don't you think so to.
Cows are tollerable high, from 25 to 35 dollars. I bought one last faul for 30
dollars. She is a splendid cow.

I think a heap of that little picture that Lou sent us. You said you thought
he was pretty, if he looks like his picture I think he is good looking. He is
just like Churchy was when he was little. Well, Cinda, you didn't know that we
had a little girl., She is seven months old today, she was born the 25 of September
1885. She is as smart as a cricket. She is teething and she is a little fretful
she has only one thooth that is through. I will have her picture taken as soon
as I can and send it too you. I know you would think she is pretty for she favors
Lou's little boy's picture. What is his name,

Well, Cinda, I recon you will think I am verry hard up for a little paper. I
finished the other side and went out to get in some stove wood to get diner with
and Nancy taken the baby and was going to read it and she gathered the paper that
was on the table and I left the bottle of ink open and she jerked it over and
spilled it on the paper that I had write on but you can read it well enough. I
have to pick my chance to write my letters for I have to write for everry boddy on
this farm and others besides. There is 34 newcomers here all from Kentuky and not
one of them can write a scratch and they bother me a greddeal all wet weather and
Sundays and a heap of nights through the week. It worrys some to and don't you
forget it.

Cinda, I do wish you would come out here, you don't know how glad me and
Nancy would be and you could visit around here as much as you do there. George
Moody lives about 4 miles from us. Billy Malone lives about 12 miles from Hills-
boro and Tom Castlebery lives about 8 miles from Hillsboro and several others live
around here that I know. I live about 2 or 2% miles southwest of Hillsboro on
Bailey Harris farm. I live on the pararie. I can see as far as my eyes will let
me see.

Well Nancy has got 27 young checkens and 3 hens sitting on her eggs and one on
turkey eggs. We haven't had much rain though we had a big rain last night and
night before and this morning and it is clearing off now so no more.

Yore devoted brother and sister.
B. J. and N. J. Pinkard
dok ok ok ok ok ok ok k%
Hillsboro, Hill Co., Texas
March 24, 1889
Mrs. L. C. Adams

My dear sister,

It is with pleasure that I seat myself to answer yore kind and most welcome
letter which I received a few days ago. I was glad to here from you and to know
that you all was well. But you didn't write half enough. Write a long letter
next time. 3

1 was verry sorry to here about Churchy getting hurt I hope he will be more
careful here after, him and Furnie both. Cinda, you all ort too see our 2 sweet
little children, Our little girl will be &4 years old in September next and weighs
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34 pounds. Her name is Alice May. The baby was 8 months old the 18 of this month
and weighed 23 pounds. He is a rooster, don't you forget it. His name is James
Thomas. It may be that I told you there names in the other letter. Alice May is
a bad Papa girl.

Cinda, we want you too have yore photograph taken and sent it to us. You
never have give me one of yore pictures yet. You have got 2 or 3 of mine. We
will as soon as we can go to town and have all of our pictures taken and will send
you one of them. You said that if I would come too see you that maybe you would
come back with me. I could not leave Nancy and the children here by themselves.
But I would love for you to come out here and stay with us a long time. I believe
you would enjoy yoreself splendid. I got a letter from Jonah a few days ago. They
are all well, Shelby was at my house last spring. I recon you head about Henry
being dead. He died about 2 years ago. John's folks are all well.

I have begun to farm a little again. I finished planting corn the 13th of
this month. I have got the most of my cotton land in fix for planting. The wind
is blowing quite a gale from the north today allmost cold enough too freez. I
believe it will freez to night. Sometimes in midwinter we will have days that is
so warm that we can't wear a coat and perhaps the next day it will be freezing
cold. We are living on the Bald Pariare. I have too haul my wood about 5 miles
from the cross timbers. Cinda, if you ever take a notion too come out here too
see us write and let me know so I can meet you at the train. It would give me a
heap of pleasure for you too come out here and stay this summer but I know you
wouldn't want too leave yore 2 little grandchildren too stay long. I know that
you love them verry dearly but then you could come and stay a while anyhow. Well
I have wrote enough. I want you all too write too us and fail not. I am young
and suple yet not a grey hair on my head yet. I am 34 years old and I don't
look any older than I did 15 years ago. So no more.

From yore brother and sister
B. J. and N. J. Pinkard
Kok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok k
Grandview, Texas
March 2, 1893
Mrs. L. C. Adams

Dear Sister,

We received your kind and most welcome letter and was glad to here from you.
I was in hope you would say you was coming to see us this summer but you did not.
I think sometime I will go to see you all but when I think of leaving Ben I get
out of the notion and I could not let him come and leave me here for we do not
know how long we will be together.

Well, I was so sorry to hear of Churchie's death but we will all have to go
sooner or later. The Lord's will be done, not ours. We should live in hopes of
meeting in a briter world where parting comes no more.

We had a letter from Furney last Friday. He said he would finish a job in 8
or 9 days and he thought he would get off to come to see us. I look at every train
comes to see if he gets off. I do hope he will come, it will be so much pleasure
for Ben. I would be so glad to see you all if you ever get to come again. I hope
you will come to stay longer than you did before. I want to see you worse now
than I did before you come.

Well, Alice and Jim talks about you and Tomie and Blanch. Alice said tell you
to come and bring Tomie and Blanch to see her. She is going to school and rits
with her left hand. I will start Jimmie to school soon.

Well, I don't expect you can make this all out as I am not verry well. I have
been sick but I am about strait now. I hope this will find you all well.

With love to all of you by your sister, N. J. Pinkard
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The Texas Wesleyan Banner was already in its third year of publication and has its
second name when the Wednesday, April 17, 1850 issue was published in Houston,
Texas with Chauncey Richardson as Editor and John W. Fields, Corresponding Editor,
Vol. II, No.:l.

The following abstracts were made by members of The Local History and Genealogical
Society.

Page 1

Letter to the Editor from W. P. Smith of Pleasant Grove, Fayette Co., Texas.

Mr. Smith enclosed a letter from his son, James A. G. Smith, which recounted

the death and burial, while enroute to California, of Major John Murchison.

The inscription put near the grave of Major Murchison read: 'Here lies the

remains of John Murchison, commander of the company of adventurers to Cali-

fornia, organized in LaGrange, Fayette County, State of Texas, in May, 1849,

and which he had conducted thus far towards its destination to the entire

satisfaction of every member, when on Saturday, 28th July, A. D., 1849, he
was unfortunately and accidentally killed by the discharge of his own gun.

He was a pure, humble Christian, a worthy member of the M. E, Church, South,

a good Freemason, and an honest man."

Page 2

List of delegates to the General Conference of the M. E. Church, South:

Kentucky Conference - H. B. Bascom, B, T. Crouch, H. H. Kavanaugh, T. N.
Ralston, W. H. Anderson, J. G. Harrison, G. W. Brush. Reserves:

S. A, Lotta, W. D. Trainer.

Missouri Conference - J. Lanius, W. Patton, W. W. Redman*, A. Monroe.
Reserves: W. G. Caples, E. M. Marion.

St. Louis Conference - B. R, Johnson, J. Boyle, J. K. Lacy, T. H. Capers.
Reserves: T. T. Ashby, J. Mitchell.

Louisville Conference - E, W, Sehon, A. H. Redford, T, Maddin, E. Stevenson.
Reserves: T. Bottomly, G. W, Taylor.

Holston Conference - S. Patton, C. Collins, J., Atkins, C. D. Smith, W, H.
Hicks, W. H. Rogers. Reserves: R. M. Stevens, T. Springfield.

Virginia Conference - J. Early, W. A, Smith, L. M, Lee, D. S. Doggett, T.
Crowder, A. Dibbrell, J. H. Davis, G. W. Langhorne. Reserves: L.
Rosser, J. E. Edvards.

Tennessee Conference - J. B. McFerrin, F. E. Pitts, T. W. Randle, A. L. P.
Green, M. M. Henkle, J. W. Hanner, E. Wadsworth, J. F. Hughes, G. W.
Martin, W. D. F. Sawrie. Reserves: A, F. Driskill, S. S. Moody.

Indian Mission Conference - W. L. McAlister, N. W. Talbot. .
Reserve: T. B. Rubble.

Texas Conference - R. Alexander, C. Richardson. Reserve: J. W. Whipple.

East Texas Conference - R, Crawford, W. C. Lewis. Reserve: S, A. Williams.

Arkansas Conference - W. P. Ratcliff, J. F. Truslow, A. Hunter, W. Moores.
Reserves: S. J. Henderson, J. W. McFarland.

North Carolina Conference - W. Closs, C. F. Deems, R. J. Carson, P, Doub,

H. G. Leigh, D. B. Nicholson. Reserves: W. Carter, S. D. Bumpass.

Mississippi Conference - W. Winans, B. M. Drake, L. Campbell, G. M. Rogers,
J. Lane, Reserves: W, H. Wtakins, D. M. Wiggins.

Georgia Conference - W. J. Parks, S. Anthony, J. E. Evans, J. W. Glenn, J.
Boring, G. J. Pierce, L. Pierce, W. Ellison, R. Renau. Reserves: J.
Lesis, G. J. Pearce.

Louisiana Conference - W. E. Doty, S. W. Speer, R. Randle, J. A. Hamill,
Reserves: J. Powell, R. Deering.

Memphis Conference-G.W.D. Harris, M.J.Blackwell, T.L.Boswell, W.McMahon,W.M.
McFerrin, M.Brock, D.J.Allel{é Reserves: S.J. Henderson, J.W. McFarland




South Carolina Conference - W. M. Wightman, H. A. C. Walker, A. M. Shipp,
W. A. Gamewell, J. Stacy, W. Smith, C. Betts, N. Talley, S. W. Capers,
Reserves: R. J. Boyd, H. Spain.

Alabama Conference - T. 0. Summers, W. Murrah, J. Hamilton, A. H. Mitchell,
T. W. Dorman, E. Callaway, G. Garrett, J. T. Heard. Reserves: E. Hearn,
G. Shaeffer.

Florida Conference - P, P. Smith, E. L. T. Blake, S. P. Richardson.
Reserve: W. W. Griffin.

*deceased.

Page 2 continued

Notice of the murder of Mr, Gerard Hayden of Rutersville, Fayette County,

Texas, April 4, 1850 by his servants. The funeral sermon was preached by

Rev. John Haynie.

Notice of the appointment at the last session of the Texas Conference of the
Rev. William Young to the Seguin and San Antonio stations.

Notice that the Rev. James Wallis, late associate Editor of the Texas
Presbyterian, had withdrawn from the Cumberland Presbyterian Church and
attached himself to the 0. S. (0ld School) Presbyterian Church.

Announcement of the election of the Rev. Samuel McKinney as President of the
Austin College; Rev. Mr. Scott as Principal of the Primary Department and
Rev. Daniel Baker, D. D. Agent.

of the of the Rev. B. L. Peel as agent for the Ruter
Church, Washington, Texas.

Notice of resumption of publication of The Texas Presbyterian at Huntsville,
Walker Co., Texas, owned by the Rev. A. J. McGown, edited by the Rev. Robert
Waters.

Obituaries:

"Death of William Jones of Anderson Co., Texas. He died on Wednesday, 20th
February, in great peace, on board the Steamer Jack Hays, at Liberty, on

her late trip up the Trinity. His body was interred at Washington Mound, but
has since been brought up, and after a funeral and procession of the order of
the Sons of Temperance, he was buried at Palestine, 24th March. His disease
was of pulmonary character, perhaps an aggravated form of pneumonia. Every
kindness by the physician and captain of the boat as well as of his companion
(who was with him) was shown, but all was vain. The stern messenger had
come, and called for his victim; and the summons must then be obeyed."

"Mrs. Sarah Dixon. Died, near Union Chapel, Robertson County, Texas, Feb-
ruary 12th, 1850 in the triumph of the Christian faith; sister Sarah Dixon,
wife of James M. Dixon, formerly of Williamson County, Tennessee; aged 33
years and 11 days.

Page 3
The following list is headed Banner Office Receipts. What it meant I do not
know, but since names are followed by a place name, they could well help in
locating a lost ancestor.

Rev. J. W. Whipple: Jas. Nicholson, Esq.,2, Bastrop. E. W. Rogers,2,
Chambers Creek.

Rev. C. Richardson: John Rabb,2, T.W. House 36. Brown and Tarbox 16, J. W.
Scott 3, A.S. Ruthven 16, E.W. Taylit;r 6, S. Mandelbaum 12, F. Scranton 4,




Rice and Nichols 15, J.E. Lillie 1 50, L.J. Lathan 12, S.P. Christian 4,
Houston.

Rev. I. Applewhite: T.J. Williams, 2, Rutersville; C.B. King,2, La Grange.

Rev. 0. M, Addison: W. Ross $2 50, Fireman's Hill; Mrs. L, Harrell 2, Spring
Hill Ala.

At Dec. Term 1849 of the County Court for Fort Bend County, letters of
administration were granted the undersigned upon the estate of James D.
Goodwin, dec'd. Richmond, Jan'y 23d, 1850. (Signed) T. H. McMahan

Drs. D. G. Gregory of LaGrange and J. Evans of Rutersville have opened a
new drugstore in La Grange.

Letters of executorship were granted to the undersigned by the Hon. Probate
Court in and for the County of Liberty, on the 3rd day of Nov. 1849 on the
estate of James M. Clayton, testator, late of said county. (Signed)

J. H. Griffin, Executor.

C. A. Turley had an ad for a Hat Manufactory on Main St., Houston.

J. N. Massey, General Commission, Receiving and Forwarding Merchant, Richmond.
Frederick Burkhart, watch maker and jeweller, Main St. Houston.

E. W. Taylor, Forwarding and Commission Merchant, Houston.

On and after Monday the 5th of Nov., 1849, the regular Line of Stages
will leave Houston every other day for Austin, and on Thursday and Saturday
will leave Austin for San Antonio.

Returning-leave San Antonio twice a week, viz: Tuesdays and Saturdays,
and will connect with the Stages leaving Austin every other day for Houston.

Through each way in five and a half days.

Fare, $20.00 and 8 cts. per pound for all extra baggage over 30 pounds.

Brown and Tarbox, Proprietors

T. W. House advertises an assortment of new goods, Houston.

B. A. Shepherd is a dealer in every description of merchandise (except liquor).
John W. Durant, Attorney at Law, Washinton.

L. J. Latham, Dry Goods etc., Main St., Houston

J. D. Giddings, Attorney at Law, Brenham.

N.F. Grey announces the opening of a school for the instruction of small
children.
Beginner, learning alphabet, spelling and Reading, per month $1.50
Grammar, Geography, Arithmetic, History, Reading, Writing, etc. $2.00

William J. Russell, President of the Board of Trustees announces that
Rutersville College, Rutersville, Fayette Co., Texas will open its next
session with Wm. Halsey, A.N., President and Professor of Languages, John S.
Norton, Professor of Mathematics. In the Female Dept., Mary C. Halsey,
Teacher in Music and Mary C. Hill, principal.

Thomas Simons has opened a forwarding Commission House in Texana. References

given: H.P. Bell, Gov.; Jas. B. Shaw, Comp. of Austin, Rev. M. Yell and H.S.

Thrall of Bastrop Co.; Cor. Ballard, Spence Townsend and J.N. Mitchell of

Lavacca Co.

A. McGowen has purchased the iron foundry lately owned by N.K. Kellum.

Joseph H. Wood of Washington advertised regular packet steamers on the Brazos.
0 - (to be continued next issue)




JOHN FLANARY
By Donald Lewis Osborn
322 Willow Way, Lee's Summit, Missouri 64063

John Flanary was my great-great-great-great-grandfather--at least there is
considerable evidence that he was and I feel quite certain he was. I am descended
from him as follows: John Flanary (circa 1750-circa 1840), Thomas Flanary (circa
1782-circa 1870), Silas Flanary (1812-1898), David Crockett Flannary (1842-1915),
Paris Clingman Flanary (1865-1949), Elsie Lydia (nee Flanary) Osborn (1903-1949),
Donald Lewis Osborn (born 1933).

Thomas was definitely my ancestor; the family tradition is too strong for him
to be otherwise. A written family source says that "Tommie" Flanary and Martha
("Pattie") Flanary, wife of Neddie Pennington, were brother and sister. Descen-
dants of Pattie and Neddie know from family tradition that Pattie's parents were
John and Phoebe Flanary. Then we find in W. M. Paxton's 1897 book,_ Annals of
Platte County (Missouri), that James Flannery's father was John Flanmery and that
James came from Lee County, Virginia. From these sources then, we have evidence
that John and Phoebe had at least 3 children: Martha (born circa 1778 or 1779)
who married Edward ("Neddie") Pennington, my ancestor Thomas (born circa 1782),
and James (born 1783). James married Rachel Benham (daughter of John Benham) and
was sheriff of Lee County, Virginia for a period including 1828. James and Rachel
moved to Platte County, Missouri in 1837. Martha and her husband were to become
ancestors of most who can trace Pennington ancestry to Lee County.

Likely John and Phoebe had children other than the 3 mentioned above. Some
researchers say John had children named Rebecca (married Henry Cox), Damiel,
Elijah, and possibly John. There is a chance he also had a son Silas for there
is one Silas I have been unable to otherwise identify--and there are 4 southwest
Virginia Silases I have "placed."

What is known about John? He was a landowner and farmer, Baptist preacher,

a slaveholder, and likely a Revolutionary War soldier. Emily Russell ("Coon')
(nee Pennington) Flanary (1862-1951), who lived near Dryden, Lee County, Virginia,
could dimly remember her older ancestors speaking of Preacher Flanary. Records
prove there was a Reverend or Elder John Flanary at the right places and times

to be my ancestor.

An 1814 tax list shows "Rev'd. John Flanary" residing in Lee County and own-
ing 400 acres. It is logical--when church records are considered--that Elder
Flanary and the John Flanary who owned slaves in the 1820, 1830, and 1840 Lee
County censuses are one and the same man. (Lee County 1800 and 1810 census records
are not extant.)

John Flanery and "Cilus" Flanery were in a Revolutionary War militia company
commanded by Captain Enoch Ozburn (Osbornme), according to muster rolls for the
early 1780's in Montgomery County, Virginia. Possibly this was my ancestor John
and perhaps ""Cilus" (Silas) was his brother. The Silas Flanary who died in 1802
in Russell County, Virginia had a daughter (Elizabeth) who was married in
Montgomery County in 1793. The Montgomery County of the early 1780's bordered
Wilkes County (that part which became Ashe in 1799), North Carolina. Many of the
names on the Enoch Osborne muster rolls are identical to names of those pioneers
who lived in Wilkes County, North Carolina. Apparently they all moved freely back
and forth across the Virginia-North Carolina boundary.

John's daughter Martha (Flanary) Pennington was born about 1778 in North
Carolina (according to the 1850 census for Lee County, Virginia). By 1782, John
was apparently in Montgomery County, Virginia for his son and my ancestor Thomas
was born during or around that year in the part of the county which later became
Grayson County (according to the 1860 Lee County, Virginia census). This coincides
with the Montgomery County muster roll dates.
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In 1790, John Flanary was in the Morgan District of Wilkes County, North
Carolina (according to the 1790 census records). Also, minutes of the Yadkin
Baptist Association held at Eatons Meeting House, Rowan County, North Carolina
in August 1790 show that John Flannery was a delegate from the North Fork Church
of Wilkes County (a printed book shows John Vannoy rather than Flannery).

Then sometime before 1806, John likely moved from North Carolina to Lee
County, Virginia for his son James had a son John born in Lee County in 1806.

Of course this is assuming that James migrated the same time as his father. We
can be certain Preacher John was there by 1811 for in October of the year 1811
some churches of the Holston Baptist Association met in Washington County,Virginia
for the purpose of forming a new association. Besides the churches who had been
in the Holston Association, the Deep Springs Church of Lee County had delegates
present. The 3 delegates from Deep Springs were John Flannery, Zachariah Wells,
and James Shepherd. They came forward and asked for admission and fellowship and
were accepted so that their church was one of the 9 which organized the Washington
Association of Regular Baptists. The Washington District Association records show
that John Flannery was a delegate from Deep Springs Church in the years 1813, 1814
and ‘1822,

John Flanary was also active in churches in Kentucky. Probably he was instru=-
mental in organizing some of them. Records of the Oven Fork Baptist Church on the
Cumberland River in Harlan County, Kentucky show that it was orgenized on the 21st
day of October 1820 and that the Presbytery was composed of John Flannery, William
Wells, and Daniel Duff. John Flannery was chosen to act as Moderator for the day
and was also chosen to act as pastor. A letter was written to the Deep Springs
Church asking for a part of his leisure time. Oven Fork records show that John
was received as pastor in March 1821, When he went to the Washington Association
in Virginia in 1822 as a delegate from Deep Springs, there was correspondence with
the Burning Springs Association (of Kentucky) and John Flannery was appointed to
attend the Burning Springs Association's next meeting.

The Oven Fork Church records further show that John Flannery was a committee
member in 1826 and 1831. Also, he was a part of the Presbytery at the Sandlick
Church at Whitesburg (then Perry County, now Letcher County), Kentucky when a
pastor and a deacon were being ordained there. In 1832, the Oven Fork Church
asked John to bear a letter to the Deep Springs Church and in April 1833, John
transferred his own letter to the Oven Fork Church from Deep Springs.

Lee County, Virginia censuses for 1820 and 1830 show that John had 4 slaves--
2 male and 2 female. Three of these slaves became members of the Oven Fork Church
for the church's records show in July 1834 that Brother Flanmmery's Robert, a slave,
was received by experience and baptism and that Brother Flannery's Polly, a slave,
and Brother Flannery's James, a slave, were received by experience and baptism.
Yes, he had a race-integrated church back in the 1830's and people fret about such
things today (1969)!

Did John ever tell a lie? He wqs at least accused of such. In 1835, he
refused to sit with the Oven Fork Church because someone made such an accusation;
but he proved himself clear, assumed his seat, and the church was dismissed in
love. This was in August. Again, in November, William Wells accused John Flannery
and David Maggard of false statements but they were cleared by the church,

Let us return to John's slaves. In July 1835, James, a slave, and his wife
Polly, a slave, asked for letters of dismissal from the Oven Fork Church. Did
John grant them their freedom or did he sell them to someone? In any case, they
likely moved away for we find in the 1840 Lee County, Virginia census that John
had only 2 slaves whereas he owned 4 in 1830.

The last time that John Flannery is mentioned in the Oven Fork Church records
was when, in 1836, he, David Maggard, and William Caudill were appointed as dele-
gates to attend the New Salem Association.




David Maggard was licensed to preach May 1837 and became pastor of the Oven
Fork Church October 10, 1841. He and James Dixon had served as Moderator-for-
the-day two or three times a year from 1836 to 1841. Probably they filled in
for John in his declining years and he probably died in late 1840 or in 1841 so
that the church had to call a pastor in 1841. The last we see of this John
Flanary in census records is 1840. At that time he was living in Lee County,
Virginia, aged 80 to 90. In his household was a female aged 80 to 90 (apparently
his wife Phoebe), a female aged 10 to 15 (perhaps a granddaughter), a male slave
aged 24 to 36, and a female slave aged 55 or above.

Lee County, Virginia deed records show that in 1815, John Flanary, Sr., and
Phebe, his wife, sold 100 acres on the south side of Stocker's Knob for $400.

In 1826, they sold 333 acres for $788.66 to Elijah Flanery.

Much of the above information about John Flanary's church affiliation was
obtained from Dr. Billy M. Adams of Louisville, Kentucky who has, along with
his father, G. Bennett Adams (deceased), done considerable research on certain
early leaders of the Primitive Baptists of Virginia, North Carolinia, and Kentucky.
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"THE SOUTHERN GENEALOGIST'S EXCHANGE SOCIETY, INC."
( A non-profit organization)

Presents its "Sixth Annual Workshop"
October 17-18, 1969
Sellers Auditorium...on the St. Johns River...516 Lomax Street
Jacksonville, Florida
Admission: $3.00 for entire work shop

An excellent program is planned, with such distinguished genealogists and
outstanding speakers as:

Mr. John I. Coddington of Bordentown, New Jersey; former editor of the National
Genealogical Society Quarterly with added distinction of being a Founding Fellow
of the American Society of Genealogists; Seminar Lecturer at the "1969 World
Conference on Records" and noted authority on genealogical research sources in
all areas.

Mrs. Harry Joseph Morris of Dallas, Texas; Certified Genealogist and Honorary
Fellow of the American Society of Genealogists; Author-Editor, active in
Patriotic Societies; also Seminar Lecturer at the "1969 World Conference on
Records."

The Reverend Mr. Emmett Lucas, a Georgian; Author and Publisher of reprint
books; the ensuing Editor of "The Georgia Genealogical Magazine."

Plus our own: Mr. Edward N. Johnson, Florida State Archivist

Mr. Robert Williams, Executive Director, Florida Board of X R
Archives and History.

WRITE: Work Shop Chairman, P. 0. Box 2801, Jacksonville, Florida 32202
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WILLIAM DEUPREE BIBLE RECORDS
Ancestors of Mrs. Eugenia Collier
P. 0. Box 6058 SFA Stations, Nacogdoches, Texas 75961

William Deupree, born 1759, lived in Charlotte County, Va., and died there
in 1854, age 96. His first wife was Amey Pettus, ancestor of Eugenia Collier,
Box 6058, SFAU Station Nacogdoches, Texas 75961.

Children of William Deupree and Amey Pettus:

Julia Deupree burn 9-22-1782 married Reuben Cheaney

Mary Deupree 4-17-1784 e John Cheaney

Thomas Deupree " 6~12-1786 % Martha Hatchett
Susan Deupree " 4-30-1788 & William Crutcher
William Deupree " 7-30-1790 L Betty Portwood

Nancy Deupree " 11-6-1792 L Harmon Elam

Joseph Deupree " 4=4-1794

John Deupree " 7-18-1796

Overton Deupree " 11-3-1798 " Mary Stephen Cheatham
Amey (Annie) Deupree "  10-8-1800 " D. Ford

Prudence Deupree " 11-4-1802 n Coleman Overton Lipscomb
Abram (Abraham) " 10-21-1805 m————

Moses L " 12-18-1807 ————

In 1837 William Deupree worte a letter (still preserved) to his two daugh-
ters far away from home. At that time he was 78 years old and felt there was
just one step between him and the grave, but he lived to be 96 years old.
Thinking our readers might be interested in times and conditions of 132 years
ago we are giving excerpts from the letter as follows:

Charlotte Co. Va. Oct. 22, 1837
Dear Daughters & Families:

I intended to write to all seperately, I am so bad off with Rheumatics in
my right arm its with difficulty I can. I waited for a leisure time, did not
expect, he - Brooks, would leave us so soon -- till Saturday, they sent me word
he was to start Monday morning, as such I write one letter hoping it will amswer
you both as well as if I had seperate letters as I have nothing to say to one
more than the other, and that you live in friendship with each other; James told
me you were all well and intended to write by by him but that he started sooner
than was expected...... I enjoy as good as I could expect have a good attetite to
eat and sleep for which blessing I do sincerely wish I could feel humbly thankful,
for experience has taught us all without health we have no real satisfaction in
the things of this life, as such let us try and beg the Lord not for us to not
set our affections on the fleeting things of this world, because we cant tell
what day or even a moment may bright forth, for when we say peace and safety
sudden destruction cometh, as such try to use the blessings he has given us so
as not to abuse them ....

The Lord has been so good to us to place our lots in the land of liberty
where we may worship him and as we think best and none to make us afraid. Let
us take our Savior's counsel, Search the scriptures daily to see if these
things are so, & may the Lord give each of you grace in your hearts to read and
understand.

I dont know whether girls will write. Julia is improving some I think but
is very poor and weak I rather think she would be willing to go to Missouri;

The rest of the family tolerable well, Henry is to be married next Tuesday to a
Miss James in Halifax and expects to live over there next year, your Cousin Susan
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is to be married next Wednesday to a Henry Jennet a very good looking youth, and
your brother William next Tuesday week to a Miss Moore over the River, I have
never seen her he tells me she is about thirty-eight years old and the family is
to be thot to be very respectable, his family was well and Mary & her little
family four days ago. Prudence keeps about but not very well, the children all
well as common, Coleman going on selling croods but not very fast; they have a
Post office there called Duprees Old Store, if you write letters direct them
there, to save me trouble and tell the friends of it; Lucy and her children well;
Polly and her family no complaint a few days ago as to the rest I heard a few
days ago old friend Harmon was complaining pretty much he has not been very well
thro the summer the ; have not heard how Osbourne comes on; Peps has rented two
old plantations in Lunenburg as poor as any in the County I think - dry through
the season - crops very short, corn woth from $2% to $3 it so dry we cant sow
our wheat, our crop of corn tolerable for the year.

Dr Daughters you will see my hand trembles so sometimes I can hardly write
a word & the time so short I could not write separate to each; I hope you will
receive thse lines wrote to you all in love and friendship as I hope you all live,
so read in therewith as much comfort as if they had been separate, we both wish
you to receive them as a token of love to each member of the families, be sure
to give my respect to each of the other dear Children in particular, and to old
Mr. Gregory and wish the Lord may bless you all in time and that you may be
prepared for Eternity dont forget us as a throne of Grace as there is but a step
between me and the Grave Farewell

Yr. unworthy Parents
Wm. and Nancy Deupree
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TEXAS ALMANAC - 1858
DESCRIPTION OF THE COUNTIES

COLORADO
Is bounded on the North by Austin and Fayette; East by Austin and Wharton; South
by Wharton and Lavaca; West by Lavaca and Fayette. The Colorado runs through the
centre of this county, with a number of small tributaries from the county. The
vater for drinking purposes is poor. The surface is undulating, about one half
covered with post and live oak. The soil away from the river is sandy; on the
river it is very rich and productive. There is an abudance of peaches, though
little of any other fruit, as yet; health is very good, the river bottoms being
generally high, and dry; there are as yet but few well established churches and
schools. Lavaca has hitherto been the seaport and market, being distant some
100 miles from Columbus, the County Seat, The recent construction of the B.B.,
B.& C.R.R. has a tendency to draw the trade by way of Richmond and Harrisburg, to
Galveston; this road is now in rapid construction to Columbus, little hope being
placed upon the Colorado as a highway. This county was created December 20th,
1836, from the Municipality of the same name.

COMANCHE
Is bounded on the North by Erath and the unorganized territory North of Pecan
Bayou; East, by Bosque and Coryell; South by Coryell and Lampasas; West by Brown
county. The Leon flows through it, with a few tributaries. For drinking and
stock purposes the water is excellent. The surface is undulating, about one-third
supplied with post-oak, elm, hackberry and ash. In the bottoms the soil is ex-
cellent, elsevhere dry and poor. The seaport and market will be Lavaca, distant
from Camden, its County Seat, some 310 miles. The S.P.R.R. will pass along its
northern point. This county was created in 1856, and it is too new to occupy as
yet more than a small place in any notice of Texas.
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WORKSHOP, MAY 9-10, 1969
List of those who registered on Friday

Anderson, Mr. Hershel W. 4012 Centenary Drive, Dallas 75225
Askew, Mr. Henry G. 3404 Lovers Lane, Dallas 75225

Askew, Mrs. Natalie 3404 Lovers Lane, Dallas 75225

Bauer, Mrs. Mary Jane 2407 Ridgedale, Carrollton, Texas
Blevans, Mary (Mrs. W. C.) 1035 N. Windomere, Dallas 75208
Bonnie, Mrs. Mary P. Pioneer Hotel, P. O. Box 1051, Lubbock 79401
Busby, Mrs. Lelia 1009 Tipperary, Dallas 75208

Busby, Mr. L. A. 1009 Tipperary, Dallas 75208

Butler, Betty (Mrs.) 4402 Somerville, Dallas 75206

Black, Miss Olive 3625 Binkley, Dallas 75205

Barnett, Mrs. Mitzi 3327 Winthrop, Fort Worth 76176
Bricker, Mrs. Opal 5807 Vanderbilt, Dallas 75206
Boykin, Mrs. Lucile Dallas Public Library

Caruth, Mary Sue 5342 Longview, Dallas

Cleere, Mrs. Dorris 1816 N. Beltline, Irving, Texas 75060
Cole, Mrs. Elizabeth K. 2711 San Marcus, Dallas 75228

Coleman, Mr. Frank R. 505 South Brighton, Dallas 75208
Cooper, Mrs. Roy F. 2716 Stanford, Dallas 75225

Cooper, Miss Ruth 4826 Worth Street, Dallas 75246
Coleman, Pearl M. (Mrs. Y. B.) Box 9692, Dallas 75214

Coppedge, Mrs. Faye 9803 Windledge, Dallas 75238

Cox, Mr. Fred 1828 Edna, Arlington, Texas 76010
Cox, Mrs. Fred Lavon 1828 Edna, Arlington, Texas 76010
Cragon, Mrs. Harvey G. 7070 Briarmeadow Drive, Dallas 75230
Curtis, Mrs. Mary Barnett 3326 Winthrope, Fort Worth 76116
Cullar, Mrs. James W. 3359 Shelley, Dallas 75211

Dishman, Mrs. R. E. 10609 Longmeadow, Dallas

Fewell, Mr. Percy 3730 North Versailles, Dallas 75209
Fewell, Mrs. Percy 3730 North Versailles, Dallas 75209
Gassett, Mrs. Esther K. 5642 Loving Drive, Dallas 75209
Garett, Mrs. Velma C. 410 Bradley, McKinney, Texas 75069
Harrison, Mr. Hastings

Harwell, Mrs. A. B. 107 Juniper Drive, Lamesa, Texas 79331
Haver, Mrs. Hilda Baker Hotel, #1020, Dallas 75221
Haygood, Faye Box 1792, Longview, Texas 75601
Higgins, Miss Eliz. Ann 5620 Live Oak, Dallas 75206

Hill, Miss Sallie F. 4113 Emerson, Dallas 75205

Hudgins, Miss Lois Dallas Public Library

Jackson, Mrs. Robert E. 517 Cumberland Cir.,Garland, Texas 75040
Jenkins, Mrs. Rosella 1520 Felix Drive, Plano, Texas 75074
Jones, Mrs. Henry O. 4420 Cole Ave., Apt. 11, Dallas 75205
Krape, Mrs. Ross Waldrop Rt.2, Lakeland Drive, Lewisville,Tex 75067
Latta, Mrs. Verba 511 Crest Hill Dr., Mesquite, Texas 75149
Lindsey, Mrs. Lola E. P 0 Box 54, Mesquite, Texas 75149
Lindsley, Mr. R. Porter, Jr. 4612 Watauga, Dallas 75209

Latimer, Mr. Joseph B. 2832 Easterbrook,Dallas 75234
Latimer, Mrs. J. R., Jr. 3310 St. John's Drive, Dallas 75205
Macdonald, Mrs. James Ross 6415 Meadow Road, Dallas 75230
McCrary, Mrs. Alline 6112 Anita, Dallas 75214

McDowell, Mrs. H. K.

McElroy, Mrs. John 3846 Davila, Dallas 75220

McElroy, Mr. John 3846 Davila, Dallas 75220
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McLaurin, Mr. Banks 5843 Royal Crest, Dallas 75230

Machac, Mrs. Emma Lou Dallas Public Library

Marsh, Miss Alice 517 Cumberland, Garland 75040 ¥
Martin, Mrs. JoAnn 1816 N. Beltline Road, Irving 75060 -,
Mayhew, Mrs. Claire 929 N. Marsalis, Dallas 75203

Miller, Miss Ada 4801 Alan Dale Lane, Dallas 75209
Monk, Mrs. Marcia 864% Patton Court, Denver, Colorado 80219
Moore, Mrs. Juanita 1123 Elmdale Place, Dallas 75224
Morris, Mrs. Mary Dean 5722 Anita Street, Dallas 75206
Morris, Mrs. Harry Joseph 6840 Lakewood Blvd., Dallas 75214
Pittman, Mrs. C. V. A. 3909 Miramar, Dallas 75205

Pratt, Margaret B. 3529 McFarlin Blvd., Dallas 75205
Prestridge, Mrs. Arthur 3728 Park Lane, Dallas 75220

Railing, Mrs. Florine 4209 Mendenhall, Dallas 75234
Ratliff, Mrs. Robert L. 1203 Cascade Ave., Dallas 75224
Reading, Mrs. R. S. 1312 Ficklin, Corsicana, Texas
Reiser, Mrs. Thomasina M. 2441 Gross Road, Dallas 75228
Roberson, Mrs. Polly Dallas Public Library

Roggenbrod, Mrs. Eloina 5614 Lindell Avenue, Dallas 75206
Seldin, Mrs. Mabel A. 6028 Dublin, #3105, Dallas 75205
Sellingsloh, Mrs. Daisy 4167 Park Lane, Dallas 75220
Sherrill, Mr. Knox W. 4133 Greenbrier, Dallas, Texas 75225
Sherrill, Mrs. Knox W. 4133 Greenbrier, Dallas, Texas 75225
Smith, Dr. Ben L. 11519 Rosser Road, Dallas 75229
Smith, Mrs. Margaret B. 3709 Lexington, Dallas 75205

Sparrow, Miss Dorothy O. 6522 St, Moritz Lane, Dallas 75214
Stanley, Miss Marie Dallas Public Library

Stevens, Mrs. Edna 5979 Lewis, Dallas 75206

Surratt, Mrs. Margaret Nash 4949 Vega Court, W. Fort Worth, Texas 76133
Teague, Mrs. Joyce Dallas Public Library

Terry, Mrs. Frances S. 5311 Edmondson, Dallas 75209

Tucker, Mrs. Faye 12018 Sunland Street, Dallas 75218
Turnage, Mrs. Bill 10324 Trailcliff, Dallas 75238
Waldrop, F. David Route 9, Box 431A, Tyler, Texas
Weedler, Mrs. Judith 11712 Dixfield, Dallas, Texas

Welch, Mrs. Pauline 2706 San Marcus, Dallas, Texas
Whetsel, Mrs., Marion 1126 Burleson, Grand Prairie 75050
Williams, Mrs. Diana 3158 Golfing Green Drive, Dallas 75234
Wilkerson, Miss Mabel 823 N. Winnetka Ave., Dallas 75208
Wright, Mrs. Lucy 1314 Wilbur Street, Dallas

Persons registered on Friday who registered again on Saturday

Barnett, Mrs. Mitzi 3327 Wenthrop, Fort Worth, Texas 76116
Black, Miss Olive 3625 Binkley, Dallas

Bonnie, Mrs. Mary P. Pioneer Hotel, P.0.Box 1051, Lubbock,Tex 79401
Busby, Mrs. Lelia 1009 Tipperary Drive, Dallas 75218
Busby, Mr. L. A. 1009 Tipperary Drive, Dallas 75218
Butler, Mrs. Betty 4402 Somerville, Dallas 75206

Cooper, Miss Ruth .

Curtis, Mary Barnett 3327 Winthrop, Fort Worth, Texas 76107
Harwell, Mrs. A. B. Rt. D., Lamesa, Texas 79331

Higgins, Elizabeth Ann 5620 Live Oak, Dallas

Jones, Mrs. Henry O. 4420 Cole Ave., Apt. 11, Dallas 75205
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Latta, Mrs. Verba 511 Crest Hill Dr., Mesquite, Texas 75149

Lindsey, Mrs. Lola P O Box 54, Mesquite, Texas 75149
Miller, Miss Ada 4801 Alan Dale, Dallas 75209
Morris, Mrs. Harry Joseph 6840 Lakewood Blvd., Dallas 75214
Seldin, Mrs. Mabel 6028 Dublin #3104, Dallas 75205
Smith, Margaret B. 3709 Lexington, Dallas 75205
Sparrow, Miss Dorothy 6522 St. Moritz Lane, Dallas 75214
Wright, Mrs. Lucy 1314 Wilbur, Dallas

Persons registered on Saturday not previously registered

Burch, Miss Bess 6334 Anita, Dallas 75214
Conger, Mr. W. R. 2434 Emmett, Dallas 75211

Davis, Mrs. Addie Route 2, Box 18, Garland 75040
Ford, Miss Grace Nevada, Texas 75073

Garrett, Mrs. Mae Desco, Texas

Hawpe, Mrs. George A. 1218 Pioneer, Dallas 75224
Johns, Mrs. Lois 4849 A. No. Central Expressway,Dallas 75205
McGowen, Mrs. Grace 2111 Healey, Dallas 75228
Morris, Mr. William J. 5722 Anita, Dallas 75206
Stewart, Mrs. Beth 2510 Cypress, Norman, Okla. 73069
Whitten, Mrs. R. E. L. 5314 Emerson, Dallas

ok hkkk ok ok ok ok koK

TEXAS ALMANAC - 1858
DESCRIPTION OF THE COUNTIES

COMAL
Is bounded on the North by Hays and Gillespie; East, by Hays and Guadalupe;
South, by Guadalupe and Bexar; West, by Kerr, Bexar and Gillespie, the Guada-
lupe, with many tributaries flowing into it as it rolls through the centre of
this county; the Cibolo skirting its northern boundary. For drinking and stock
purposes, water is abundant and most excellent; the surface is rolling, and
even mountainous in parts, about one-third supplied with scrubby live oak and
mesquite; the soil is excellent in the valleys, but good for mothing besides
grazing elsewhere. In the valley land, the peach, pear, grape and other fruits
have been successfully cultivated. Health is excellent. In the towns some
attention is paid to churches and schools. Lavaca is both the seaport and
market, being some 150 miles distant from New Braunfels, which is the County
Seat and principal town in the county, located in the rich valley of Guadalupe.
The county was originally settled by a colony from Germany, and was created
March 24th, 1848, from Bexar and Travis counties.

CORYELL
Is bounded North by McL Bosque and ; East by McL and Ellis;
South by Ellis and L ; West by and L « The Leon flows

through it, into which flow a number of tributary streams within the county.
The water is pure and healthful. The surface of this county is rolling; about
one~third supplied with live and post oak. The soil in the valleys is of a
dark, rich loam. The Peach has been successfully introduced. Health is good.
As yet, churches and schools are scarce. Galveston is the seaport, distand
from Gatesville, the County Seat, some 270 miles. Houston is the market. The
Southern Pacific Railroad will run some thirty miles from its Northern line.
This county was created February 4th, 1854, and taken from Bell County.
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THE REDDEN FAMILY OF TEXAS
Richard S. Uhrbrock, 22 North Congress Street, Athen, Ohio 45701

Little resédrch has been done on the REDDEN- family of Texas. In early
records the name has been spelled REDDIN and REDDING. Probably the earliest
Texas record connected with the name is that which refers to a grant of land
to Isaac Reddin (s) in 1838. (1) Of interest are the details of the adminis-
tration of the estate of James F. Reddin in 1848. The final settlement in favor
of P, Witt, Deed No. 568, is recorded in the Courthouse, Dallas. Records read
as follows:

April 11, 1848, Judge John Cole, Judge of Probate Court, Dallas County,
Texas was petitioned by Pleasant Witt. '"James F. Reddin ,.. about the month
of May 1847, departed this life intestate, leaving no relatives in the State
of Texas as your petitioner is informed and verily believes, said Reddin left
a conditional certificate for the amount of (320 acres) three hundred and
twenty acres of Land issued to him by the Board of Land Commissioners of the
County of Red River. That afterwards, to wit, in the year 1843 said Reddin
executed to Preston Witt, a bond by which he bound himself to procure from a
Board of Land Commissioners an unconditional certificate and to transfer the
same to said Preston Witt., That there may be due said Reddin from the Govern-
ment an amt. to your petitioner unknown ... your petitioner prays that your
Honorable Court will grant to him, Letters of Administration on the estate of
said Decedent." Dallas, Texas, April 11, 1848. (Signed)

Pleasant Witt & J. C. McCoy, his Attorney.

Letters of Administration were issued May 29, 1848. $300.00 bond.
""Headright Certificate transferred to Preston Witt by Order of Probate Court,
Dallas, Texas." May 1

In the July term of Probate Court (1848) Preston Witt petitioned the Court

to order Pleasant Witt to convey Certificate to Preston Witt. " ... said
Pleasant Witt in his capacity of administrator aforesaid since the Death of
said never has y ed the right to said described

Certificate or to any part thereof to your petitioner ... doth refuse to do
the same, to the great damage of your petitioner, the sum of One Thousand
Dollars." (Signed) Preston Witt, by J. C. McCoy.

Final Settlement by Court, February 14, 1849, Jno. W. Smith, Clk.

Approved in Open Court, February 26, 1849. On same date Pleasant Witt paid
$8.90 Administration fee. McCoy ack. receipt for $10.00 for services.

Although JAMES ‘F. REDDIN filed claim for 320 acres of land with the Board
of Land Commissioners in Red River County the land was located in Tarrant County,
Texas. The explanation is as follows: '"This Board of Land Commissioners was a
body which operated while Texas was still a Republic prior to 1846. A good
many settlers got their headrights from this Board but located their land in
other Counties, sometimes hundreds of miles from Red River County." (2) A
letter from the General Land Office, Austin, states: '"There is of record in
this office by Certificate No. 7, where JAMES F., REDDING (sic) received a grant
of 320 acres of land which was located in Tarrant County and patented to the
heirs on November 13, 1860. Nothing further is given with reference to this
grant, neither is there any record of the date and place of his birth nor the
marital status of this party." (3)

The name REDDEN has been well-known in Delaware and Maryland and New Jersey
since the Eighteenth Century. JOHN REDDEN married ANNA CLEANE at Old Swedes,
Newcastle County, Delaware, June 6, 1756. (4) About 1807 young NEHEMIAH REDDEN
and his cousin SHADRACH REDDEN went from Worcester County, Maryland to Kentucky.
Many details concerning the REDDEN family are available at the Library of the
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Maryland Historical Society, Baltimore, the Hall of Records, Dover, Delaware
and the Filson Library, Louisville, Ky.

References
1. Mullins, Marion Day, "Some Texas Land Grants." National Genealogical
Society Quarterly, 1959, 47, (4), 185.

« Personal communication from E. W. Bowers, District Clerk, Red River County,
Clarksville, Texas, March 6, 1956.

~

3. Personal communication from Chas. R. Leggott, March 21, 1957.
4. Delavare Marriage Records, New Castle County, Delaware, Vol. 36, p. 19.
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SOME EARLY MARRIAGES

MORGAN COUNTY, KENTUCKY

1828 Henry Lawson to Melinda Montgomery
1830 Isaac Nickell to Ibbe Cole

1831 John Jones to Sally Cole

1832 William Montgomery to Lydia Swango

1837 Tracey Cole to Mariah Collins
1832 Samuel Cole to Jane Ward

1840 Isaac Selvage to Lois Cole

1845 Thomas Igo to Martha Montgomery
1846 Samuel Helton to Eliz Montgomery
1846 William Smith to Nancy Cole

1847 William Montgomery to Elizabeth Jenkins
1847 Jake Caskey to Jane Cole

1847 Joseph Montgomery to Copoa Ann Howard
1848 Harmon Cole Harrison to Lucinda Elliott
1850 James Montgomery to Nancy Jackson
1850 Miles Montgomery to Franky Cantrell
1850 Richard Spencer to Lucrecy Montgomery
1850 Will Jenkins to Sarah Montgomery
1852 N. H. Montgomery to Susanna Cock
1854 Charles A. Montgomery to Clarinda Williams
1856 John Montgomery to Sarah Minix
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SURNAME QUBRY INDEX-GENEALOGY DEPARTMENT, DALLAS PUBLIC LIBRARY
DALLAS, TEXAS

Farmer
In America, 1691. (H. W. Farmer, Brooks, Kentucky.)

Farmer
John b. Monogalia, West Virginia, 1789. m. Sarah Price, Jan. 14, 1814. Also
lived in Kentucky. (H. W. Farmer, Brooks, Kentucky.)

Farquhar

Alfred Washington and Austin Cos., Texas app. 1840-1880. There was at one time
a Farquhar genealogy, but it was burned. It has been told to me by older mem-
bers of the Qumi.l.y that the first Farquhars to come to the U.S. came from
Scotland after the revolution there. They were John and Alfred. In the late
1700's and early 1800's they lived in North Carolina and then moved to Mississ-
ippi and findlly to Texas. I shall greatly appreciate any information on any
of this family. (James T. Ramsey, Jr., 2007 Althea, Houston 18, Texas OV2-5611)

Farr

Dianna (Bethel?, Georgiana?) married Herrick. b. 1833, Sterling, Illinois or
New York. In 1854, a brother and his wife lived for the winter with Dianna
and her husband, O. F. Herrick, in Sterling, Ill, Dianna diéd Ju!.y 1, 1869. I
don't know where. It is possible that the brother's name was Daniel T. and
that they were from Seneca County, New York. Daniel T. settled in Maquoketa,
Iowa in 1854. (Georgiana S. Robertson, 6118 Glendora, Dallas 75230, 368-0632)

Farrar
George Prentice; Derry, New Hampshire 1850-1870; Florida 1870; Dallas 1874-1877.
(Mildred H. Farrar, 8350 Park Lane, Dallas 75231, 368-6580)

Farrer §

Henry H. 1860 Hopkins, Texas. b, Lincoln Co., Georgia. Parents: James H. and
Jane E, Jennings Farrer of Georgia. (Mrs. E. H. Pettibon, 2312 Enfield, Austin 3,
Texas, GR6-3172)

Faure-Fore all variant spellings

Peter (descendant of Pierre Faure of Manakin) b. ca. 1797 Prince Edward Co.,
Virginia, m. ca. 1823 to Sally Richardson, dau. John Richardson and Rebecca
Davis of Va., d. 1868 Charlotte Co., Va. There are too many Peter Fores! Need
to know the generations (how many?) between the first Pierre Faure in America
(1700) to Peter b. ca. 1797 in Prince Edward Co., Va. who calls himself Peter
Jr. Was he'd son of Peter who m. Mary Winston (widow of Charles Woodson) in
Prince Edward Co., Va. 17887 He had the following children (Peter Jr. and
Sally) 1. John W. Fore b. ab, 1824 2. Anne W. b. ab. 1825 m. George W. Pettus
and had number of children including 7 sons 3. Mary G. m. her cousin John D.
Richardson 4, Sophronia L. m. William B. Watkins by 1850 and had at least one
son 5. Henry Thwestt Fore b. Feb., 1830, m. Eloise Jane Graves 1854 in Grimes
Co., Texas 6. Hillary R. G. 7. Edward W. 8. Logan (?) (Mrs. O. C. Herdman,
2508 0ld Ouks Drive, P. 0. Box 7402, Waco, Texas 76710)

Fawbush
George W. ‘and ‘Hannah Jane Wilber of Louisville, Kentucky. (Estella Matheny,
5225 Main Street, Downes Grove, Illinois.)
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Fawks (Fox, Faulks)
Missouri, Tennessee. (L. O. McAdams, 1236 Saturn Springs Drive, Garland)

Fears

Nacogdoches Co., Texas (1860) Troup Co., Georgia (1850). Will exchange any
information regarding this family. (Mrs. William A. McBride, 113 West Filmore,
Harlingen, Texas)

Featherston (E-stun)

England, Virginia (Henrico and Chesterfield 1743-1810) Weakley Co., Tennessee.
1811 til present time. Would like any information on Henry Featherstone of
Chesterfield Co., Va. He is said to have been a Methodist minister. Am
especially interested in knowing his birth date and date of his marriage to
Elizabeth Marshall. Henry was one of three brothers who came to Va. ca. 1743
(other two were Charles and Edward). I believe that his father also came and
that his name was Charles, Also believe that Charles, the father, married Phebe
Walthall (would like proof of marriage of Charles and Phebe. Phebe Walthall is
said to have been the daughter of Henry Walthall, will dated , who married
Phebe Ligon, dau. of Thomas Ligon of Henrico Co., Virginia). Henry Featherstone
d. Smith Co., Tenn. in 1827 or 1828, Have typed copy of his will, which is
recorded in Smith Co., Tenn. Will exchange information. I have a good bit of
material on various members of the Featherstone family. (Miss Marie Rutledge,
503 W. Market S., Greenwood, Mississippi.)

Featherston (E-stun)

Tennessee--Smith Co., Would like birth, marriage, and death dates for Edward
Featherston, son of Henry and Elizabeth (Marshall) Featherston. Presume he
moved to Smith Co., Tenn. ca. 1811 with his parents. m. Mary Hibbitt, when and
where? Edward Featherston fought in the War of 1812 from Smith Co., Tenn. Not
to be confused with another Edward Featherston, his cousin, who also was in same
war from Rutherford Co., Temn. Will exchange information. (Miss Marie Rutledge,
503 W. Market St., Greenwood, Miss.)

Fellows (Fellowes, Fellor, Fellers)
West Virginia during the Civil War period, probably Virginia earlier. Who were
LE. Fellow's parents? Lt. James D. Fellows was my grandfather who was
in the Civil War. (Mrs. Ivy Henderson, 6723 Covington Lane (son's add.) Dallas)

Fender

Virginia, North Carolina, Indiana, Illinois, Iowa. What was name of Andrew
Fender's father? Andrew b. ab. 1780 possibly in Va., m. four times and the
father of 16 children. What was Andrew's mother's name? Also names of wives.
Where was he in 18507 Did he have brothers and sisters? (Mrs. C. C. Miller,
3448 Aransas, Corpus Christi, Texas.)

Ferguson
Isaac H., believed born ca. 1771, d. 1/1/1848 in Mexico City (Mexican War),

m. Elizabeth Johnson, b. Kentucky 1878 about 1805-6 in Ky. Came to Marine Twp.
(I11.) 1813 with brother-in-law, John Warwick. Lived in vicinity of Ft.Russell
1806. Brothers, Joseph, Absolum, Elijah in War of 1812. Issue: John L.,
Lucinda, Elizabeth Ann, Minerva Ann, William, Justice, Nicholas, Mary. Came to
Texas about 1841. Would like to know Isaac H. Ferguson's place of birth, parents,
etc. (Ill, to Tex.) (Mrs. George L. Brown, 2001 N. Sam Houston, Odessa, Texas.)
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Ferguson
Sam, Wife, Isabelle Barber. ‘Soldier in Revolution. Barber record wanted.
(B. Waters, 3920 Worth, Dallas, Texas.)

Ferguson

Susan, b. Virginia ca. 1793, d. Roane County, Tennessee. Susan Ferguson m.
William Carter May 27, 1817 in Knox County, Tenn. Who were her parents and
where in Virginia did they live? Will exchange data. (Mrs. L. L. Sowell,
1305 Logan Ave., Corpus Christi, Texas.)

Fer, i 3
William. Wife, Elizabeth, dau. of Sam and lsabell Ferguson. (B. Waters, 3920
Worth, Dallas.)

Ferree (Ferre, Fiére, Le Fevre)
Eleanora, b. 1812, m, William Skinner. Mother's Maiden name, Walter. Hagers-
town, Maryland. (Marion Smith Flake, P.0. Box 1903, Salt Lake City, Utah)

Ferris
Family Drawer of Dallas Public Library.

Fewell (Fewel, Fuel) :

King George Co., Virginia. ‘Culpepper Co., Va. by 1789; Stokes and Rockingham
Cos., North Carolina about 1800; Tennessee by 1820; Missouri by 1838. Also
Mississippi, Texas, California. Mr. Fewell of King George Co. m. Eliza Colvin
before 1769. Benjamin Fewell m. Anne (Nancy) Walle in 1789, Culpepper Co.
Benjamin died in 1820, North Carolina; Anne died in 1848, Clinton, Mo. James '
Fewell b. 1790 m. Elizabeth Preston Burton, 1815, Stokes Co., N. C. He died in
1862, Mo. Nancy Jane Elizabeth Fewell b. 1822, m. 1838 to Wm. H. Moody; moved
to DeSoto Co., Miss. before 1850, where both died. Richard Fewell, brother of
James, and Peter. Burton Fewell, son of James, moved to Texas. Should like to
locate descendants of Peter Burton Fewell. Will exchange data on Fewells.
(Miss Lucille Payne, Olive Branch, Mississippi.)

Field
Sunset of Augusta, Maine app. 1870. Mother, Elizabeth Murphy Field of Ireland.
Want Father's name. (Tracy Cary, 2032 Wilshire Blvd., Ft. Worth, Texas.)

Fields

John, Henry, Abel, William, Peter, Edmond, Margaret, Elizabeth, Louisa, Matilda,
Richard. Virginia or North Carolina before 1811. Maury, Tennessee 1811-1845.
(Mrs. J. W. Stafford, Route 2, Palestine, Texas, 729-8381.) -

Fike Family

Beeghly, Wilbert G. Descendants of Susanna Beeghly and Christian Fike, by
W. G. Beeghly. Pittsburgh, 1966. 148 pages. Limited edition available from
Herald Press, Scottsdale, Pa.

Finch

William b. ca. 1790 South Carolina, (1850 census of Decatur Co., Tennessee)
fathered children Daniel, Thomas, George Washington, James, Elizabeth, Whiteney,
Robert, Richard, John, other names unknown. George Washington to Texas 1861;
Robert to Texas 1855; Thomas remained in Decatur Co., Tenn.; Richard to Texas
1880; Elizabeth to Texas 1865; James to Texas 1857(?). Family names Youngblood,
McWhirters, Youngs, Cochrans, Graves. John to Mississippi 1847, (Eugene Bray,
% Paris News, Paris, Texas.) - 33 -




Finch

Want information on Miles, Finch, Youngblood, Knox. Marriage in Kentucky, ¥
Tennessee, Georgia. Will exchange information. (Harold L. Miles, 1914 Ridge-
more, Houston, Texas.)

Findlay
(Robert Imsley, Jr., 1500 Seminole Ave., Detroit, Michigan.)

Fine

Alfred (Alford) W., son of William Sr. Giles Co., Tennessee, Washington Co.,
Arkansas, Bosque Co., Texas, Comanche Co., Texas. b. Dec. 12, 1817, d. April 20,
1896. m. Rachel Mankina. Issue: 1. John Calvin m. Mary E. Noakes 2. Pressley

R. m. Weeks 3. Mary E. m. J. Henry Everett 4. Rufus E. 5. Sidney W.
m. Nancy 6. James (killed in Civil War) 7. Orlena(?) 8. Margaret (?)
9. Ruth(?) 10. Lafayette 11. (Donald J. Arnold, 524 Rorary Drive,

Richardson, Texas.)

Fine

John Calvin (son of Alfred). Washington Co., Ark., Bosque Co., Texas, Johnson
Co., Texas. b. Jan. 17, 1842, d. Aug. 22, 1910, m. Mary Elizabeth Noakes.

Issue: 1. Albert Ross m. Mary A. Webb 2. John Calvin Jr. 3. Wm. Howard m.Leona
Lockett 4, Mary Elizabeth m. Arthur P. Webb 5. Thomas Morgan m. Bessie Smith

6. Henry Everett m. Cora Pendell 7. Peter Cooper m. Vera Barnes 8. Leonard
Vinette d. age 4 9. Ara Jane d. age 5. (Donald J. Arnold, 524 Rorary Drive,
Richardson, Texas.)

Fine

William B.(?) Washington Co., Arkansas, Virginia, Tennessee. b. ca. 1781, d.
before 1870, m. Catherine Sivly. Issue: 1. Alfred W. m. Rachel Mankins

2. Spencer F. m. Jane 3. William B. m. Millie Mankins 4. Jonathan m.
Rachel Mankins 5. Bluford T. m. Ruth Adams Brown 6. Henry m. dis
Charlotte m. Thomas Wilson 8. Lucinda m. Thomas Brown 9. Betty(7) 10. Eliza-
beth(?) 11. Louallen(?) m. Sally Ann Brown. (Donald J. Arnold, 524 Rorary Drive,
Richardson, Texas.)

Fine (Fijn, FY¥n, Fein, Fin, Finn)

On the microfilm of New Netherlands Families, I would like to know what might be
available in tying my Fine family. I really need a clue on the use of the name
Vinet (Winenot, Winant, Wynant,Vinott) as a Christian name. I have found where
a WYnent Van Zandt was present at the baptism of a child of one Frederick Fyn and
Jannetje Van Zante in the Reformed Dutch Church records published in the New
York Gen. & Biog. Record. My Vinet Fine was b. in Virginia according to some
write-ups, but I would think it odd if he was the first of that name. Some of
the allied families seem to be Lefferts, Van Zandt, Remsen, Skillman, Ten EYck,
Jansse, and Marschalk. They are located at Newtown, Long Island; New York;
Bergen Co., New Jersey; and some insolated info in other nearby areas. I did
find a reference to a book review of New Netherlands Families, by Wilson V.Ledley,
1958, which refers to Jan Janszen Fyn as progenitor of Dutch Fine's. If there is
a write-up on the Fine name, tell me how much it would cost to get a print made,
and maybe we can handle it that way, especially if it is very long. (Donald J.
Arnold, 5504 16th Place, Lubbock, Texas 79416.)

Finley
John W.,Tennessee. Need connection of John W. Finley m. Margaret Ann Bell (2)
also m. Margaret Wren (1). John b. Tenn. Moved to Smith Co., Texas before 1860
from Mississippi. (James Wilkins, 608 Richardson Drive, Tyler, Texas.)
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Finley (Findley)

Joha W. (Jack) “1813-76. b Tennessee.. Moved to Starrville, Smith Co., Texas
about 1858, 'm.’(l) Margaret Wren (2) Margaret Ann Bell, Would like info on
Tenn. ancestry. ~ (John Wilkins, Box 215, Grand Saline, Texas.)

Fisler (Fessler)
La Ark. (Mrs: A. J. Bouinich, 3714 Davila Dr., Dallas.)

Fitch
Della Oneta. Limestone Co., Texas, 1914 (Mona Joy Stephens, Box 8825, Dallas,
FR1-3461.)

Fitzgerald

F. Gerdld. Anderson or Plesant. b. 1795 in Georgia. Resided in Bradley Co.,
Tennessee, 1840. Also Titus Co., Texas. (Mrs. F. M. Gunn, 1401 Southwood,
Arlington, Texas.)

Flahart (Flayharty, Flahardt)

William, John, James P. Am interested in anybody with any of the three names
mentioned. William and John were brothers; James P. was their father.
(Annette Meyer, 9414 B Lake North Circle, Dallas.)

Flanery (Flanary, Flannery) t: ‘
James, William Phillip, Michael, Hampton, David Morgan, Mark. -Lee, Madison,
Scott Cos., Virginia, 1790-1900. Kentucky, 1800-1927. NorthCarolina, 1748.
Michael Flanery came from Ireland, 1790 -- his son was William Parsons, grandson
was David Spivey (latter two in Owsley Co., Ky. James Flanery was of a different
branch and in America earlier. He m. Mary Minter. His son, Hampton Flanery

b. 1833 in Va., d. Owsley, Ky. 1927. (Mrs. R. E. Dishman, 10609 Longmeadow,
Dallas, Texas.) 3

Flannery

Nancy Jane b. 1849 in Illinois, d. 1892 in Gainesville, Texas. Don't know Nancy
Jane's parents. She had a sister, Louisa Flannery b. 1854 in Illinois. Will
appreciate any information on the Flannery line. (Mrs. Paul A. Meine,609 Town
North Dr., Arlington, Texas.)

Fleming
George. 1828 of New Jersey, Illinois, Oregon. b. 1828 Morris Co., N. J.,

blacksmith, m. (as her second husband) Mrs. Isaphena (Carver) Walker in'Clackamas
Co., Oregon Sept. 29, 1961; Civil War veteran; date of death unknown. ' Supposedly
of Scotch background. He is supposed to have come West through Peniisylvania,
res. for a time in Illinois. (Mrs. Luther G. Jones, 217 Russe}l Blvd., Davis,
Calif. 95616, 753-3973.) it A j Ll
Fletcher - e

Joseph W. b. 1814, lived in Tennessee in 1866. Lived in Vlrginia in 18&4 where
Lockey Doss Fletcher was born. (Hrs. E. A. Rees, 4044 Purdue,’ Dallas ) i

Fletcher L %
Albermarle Co., Virginia. Want ancestors of Thomas Clark Fletcher m. Susan
Jouett. (Mrs. J. F. Huntley, 4505 Fairway, Dallas.)

- 35 -




Fletcher

William, Reuben, Carter, James. Essex Co., Virginia 1728. Caswell Co., North
Carolina 1775. Madison Co., Alabama 1815. Rutherford Co., N. C. 1790.
Buncombe Co., N. C. 1792. I. Wm. Fletcher m. Martha, ch. William, James,
Elizabeth (2), Phoebe. Will 1828, II. Wm. Fletcher m. Mary. ch. Elizabeth
m. Ed., Martha m. Wheat, William, Joseph. III. William m. Rebécca Moore.
Ch. Carter, Reuben rev. sol. Caswell Co., N. C., James (?), Sally m. Charles
Breedlove in Essex, Phoebe m. Zachariah Sullins in N. C. Soon after death of
Wm. Fletcher II, the family moved to Caswell Co., N. C. by Jan. 1776. Much
more family data. (Miss Eula Haskew, 1004 Main Ave., Brownwood, Texas.)

Flint (Flynt)

Tenn. 1813-? When and where did Abijah Flint m. Mary Gideon? They were parents
of Syrena M. Flint who was b. March 29,1813 in Tennessee. (Mrs. Leon Boatwright,
Mabank, Texas.)

Flippin (Flippen, Flipping)
Virginia, Tennessee, Kentucky, Arkansas, Texas. Want facts of Thomas Flippin
d. 1819/1820, Monroe Co., Ken. Records lost by fire. Land grants, Greene Co.,
Tenn. 1787; on records of Hawkins & Jefferson Cos., Tenn.; removed to Barren
Co.,Ky. about 1800. Deeds of gift to children 1818/1819, Barren Co., Ky.,
m. Rhoda McAdoo, dau. of John McAdoo. Sons: Isaac, James & William remained
in Monroe until death. Son, Allen in Titus Co., Texas in 1850's. Son, Thomas
in Marion Co., Ark. in 1837. Sketches of Flippin Family printed in Monroe Co.,
Ky. & Marion Co., Ark. both state Thomas Flippin served in American Revolution;
possibly the Thomas Flipping, Sgt. of Capt. Thos. Buford's Volunteers from
Bedford Co., Va., and the Thos. Flippin of Bedford Co., Va. who deeded 100 a. in
Cumberland Co., Va. to Joseph Flippin of Cumberland. What was the relationship
between these two? Want names of parents, brothers, sisters, also place of
birth and marriage, or any fact of Thos., his wife, Rhoda McAdoo, or of his
descendants., Will exchange facts on many Flippin lines. (Mrs. Herbert F. May,
1315 Hollywood Dr., Jackson, Tenn.
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TEXAS ALMANAC - 1858

DESCRIPTION OF THE COUNTIES

COOKE
Is bounded on the North by Red River, separating it from the Medina territory;
East by Denton and Grayson; West, by Young and the Fannin Land District; South,
by Wise and Parker. Besides Red River, a number of small streams rise in it,
tributary to the Trinity, furnishing a tolerably well watered territory. For
drinking purposes, the water is only tolerable. The surface is undulating, one-
fourth supplied with a growth of post oak and elm. The soil is black prairie
earth, very productive for grains suited to that latitude. Fruits are quite
abundant. Health is not better in any county in the State. Schools are numerous
and well sustained. The church membership in this county is said to bear a
larger proportion than any other county. Galveston is the seaport, distant from
Gainesville, the County Seat, some 375 miles. Jefferson is also a market, being
some 135 miles nearer. Transportation is by ox-teams. This county was created
March 20th, 1848, from Fannin County.
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MISSISSIPPI
MINTER-MINTON MARRIAGES

Copied from marriage records on microfilm, Mississippi State Library,
Jackson, Miss.

Groom Bride Date County
A. B. Minter Amelia F. Harris Dec. 4, 1869 Warren
A. C. Minter Mrs. McGillady Oct. 23, 1922 Madison
A. J. Minter E. T. Maury July 16, 1879 Marion
Burl Minter Doris Pilgreen Jan. 13, 1922 Jones Co.
David Minter Nannie Smith Feb. 18, 1900 Jones Co.
Ebenezer Minter Mary Wilburn Dec. 11, 1835 Yalo.
Elgy D. Minter Naney C. Kolb Jan. 1, 1851 Lowndes
Elzy Minter Mary L. Love Sept. 20, 1866 Lowndes
Felix 0. Minter Martha Jane Aldredge March 29, 1856 Yalo.
George Minter Gertrude Sherman August 12, 1917 Jones
J. E. Minter Rebecca Ellis Feb. 8, 1895 Lowndes
J. K. Minter Margaret J. Fields Oct. 28, 1851 Carroll
James Minter Elizabeth Jones July 22, 1840 Carroll
John Minter Parthenia Wroten Sept. 17, 1836 Copiah
Jos. W. Minter Maggie Curan Jan. 11, 1872 Warren
Jos. Minter Mary Johnson June 1, 1912 Jones
Jos. T. Minter Sarah Wood Dec. 14, 1845 Copiah
R. A. Minter Annie Turnipseed Apr. 1, 1906 Grenada
Thos. J. Minter Susan J. Egger Jan. 9, 1851 Lowndes'
W. D. Minter S. E. Stokes Aug. 21, 1863 Copiah
Wash. Minter Hanna Wolf March 8, 1870 Hinds
Billie Minton Katie Brewer Aug. 31, 1921 Lincoln
C. W. Minton Mattie Ashmore Oct. 31, 1900 Carroll
Elmer Minton C. Christena Harrison Nov. 26, 1921 Pontotoc
Geo. Minton Bell Hutto May 22, 1918 Forest
H. W. Minton Ellen C. Smith Dec. 7, 1873 Copiah
Henry W. Minton Martha Wooten Sept. 20, 1865 Copiah
Hugh Minton Maggie Henderson March 21, 1922 Copiah
J. L. Minton Gertrude Carpenter May 28, 1909 Carroll
J. M. Minton Nancy Minton Dec. 28, 1881 Copiah
J. M. Minton Bettie Martin Dec. 28, 1885 Copiah
J. S. Minton Bettie Martin April 26, 1893 Marshall
J. L. Minton Elizabeth Hutson April 27, 1865 Copiah
Jake Minton Jennie Crown Nov. 23, 1876 Copiah
James Minton Nancy Matthews March 3, 1829 Copiah '
Jesse Minton Millbury Cooke Sept. 12, 1823 Lawrence
W. J. Minton Florence Foster July 25, 189% Copiah
Wm. V. Minton Celia Smith Oct, 21, 1856 Copiah
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DR. JOHN A. FREEMAN
EARLY PHYSICIAN OF DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
Submitted by Mrs. Vernal D. Tuttle
1416 South Avenue "B", Portales, New Mexico 88130

John A. Freeman, early-day physician, was born about the year 1821-1822,
somewhere in Tennessee.l He died in late June, 1871 in Dallas County, Texas.
An article in the "Dallas Herald" under date of June 24, 1871 tells of the
finding of his body near the Caruth farm, six miles north of Dallas. A later
edition of the Herald is being sought as a source of additional information.

It is hoped that his obituary may be found and a copy obtained for family
records. Traditionally, the Dr. is buried in a family plot located between
Oak Cliff and Cockrell Hill. Family members recall a letter asking permission
to re-inter those in the private burying grounds and it is believed that his
remains may have been moved to a public cemetery. However, no money was ever
paid to my informant for the right-of-way that supposedly took precedent over
the resting place of our Freeman dead. Letters to the older Funeral Homes in
the Dallas area failed to yield a single clue as to the physical location of
this old burying ground. I am told that no records were kept concerning these
private cemeteries.

Dr. John A. was first married, in the 1840s, and they were the parents of
nine children, not all of whom reached their majority. Shortly after the death
of his first wife, the Dr. married, in the 1850s, Nancy, believed to have been
a daughter of James Mulliken of Virginia and Tennessee. There were nine child-
ren born of the second marriage and here too not all lived past infancy and
early childhood. There were several sets of twins of both marriages. The dates
and places of the marriages have not been determined.

Of the first children, only James M., Simon E., and Grace are known.
According to the 1870 Federal Census of Dallas County, James M. was born c1848
in Tenn.; Simon E. was born c1850 also in Tenn. Grace Freeman was already liv-
ing elsevhere in 1870, perhaps with her known husband, Judge Scott of Cisco,
Texas. Traditionally, James M. went to Arkansas and was thought to have owned
and operated a Men's Clothing Store in Little Rock. The Little Rock City
Directory yields only a James A. Freeman living there 1897-1898 and he operated
a saw mill. Simon E. "Sim" was known to have lived in Grand Prairie. Both,
James M. and Simon E. were unmarried in 1870 and living with their father and
step-mother.

John A. and Nancy's children were: Rachel C. "Kate" born 1857-1858 in
Tennessee; John B. "Jack" born 1858-1859, Tenn.; Robert M. b. 1862-1863, Tenn.;
Marion Francis and George W., twins, born 14 April 1868, Texas. Marion F. died
about age 4 years from chills and fever. The other four children are assumed
to have died in infancy or youth.

Rachel C. "Kate'" Freeman was first married to Bill Combs, one time County
Judge in Dallas County. She married second in her 72nd year. The name of her
last husband is not known.

John B. "Jack" Freeman is believed to have settled in Oklahoma where he
was a prominent land owner and farmer in "Paul's Valley."

Robert Murphy Freeman was born 30 Oct. 1862, in Tenn. per census, but in
Cedar Glades, Arkansas according to his own statement. Cedar Glades was in
Montgomery County in 1862 and is now beneath the waters of Lake Quachita which
area is now in Garland County. Dr. Robert M. was only age 9 when his father
died and when a young man went to live with a French family named Revershon.

He was educated by the foster parents and graduated from Baylor University,
Medical Department on 27 April 1907. He practiced medicine in Dallas County
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and was known to have been on the staff at St. Pauls Hospital. He was a member
of The Dallas County Medical Society and it was this society who furnished many
of the clues. that led to factual information concerning Dr. Robert M. Late in
life, he married a Frenchwoman named Anne. Dr. Robert M. died 20 Jan. 1935 and
rests in a mausoleum in the Oak Lawn section of Dallas.

George Washington Freeman, youngest child of the second marriage, was born
14 April 1868, in Denton or Dallas County. He died 22 June 1953 in the Ranger
General Hospital, Ranger, Texas and was buried 23 June in the Bullock Cemetery
near Ranger. Volume R, page 484 of Dallas County Marriage Records contains the
record of his marriage to Miss Annie Rebecca Long on 2 Oct. 1899. Annie was the
daughter of William Samuel and Amanda (Clarke) Long, who were married 31 Dec.
1878 in Chattanooga,Tennessee.

George W. and Annie R. (Long) Freeman had three children: Roberta Eva born
7 July 1900 in Dallas County, Texas; William Lee born 4 June 1902 in Dallas
County; and Frankie Mae born 14 Nov. 1906 in Cleveland County, Oklahoma.
Roberta E. married Jesse Leonard Miller, William Lee married Louise Blanton,
and Frankie M. married Charles Emery Beck.

Only the descendants of George W. Freeman are known.

By 1899, George W. was a partner in the restaurant business in Dallas, as
this was his occupation when he married, Miss Annie Rebecca Long. The restau=-
rant adjoined and was connected to a "saloon" with swinging doors. Because of
her fear that George would be harmed by a drunk who strayed into the eating
establishment, Annie insisted that my grandfather sell out, which he did.

For the next few years they lived in the Oak Cliff and Cockrell Hill sec-
tions and it was here that my mother, Roberta Eva, was born 7 July 1900. In
1903 they moved to Oklahoma and it was in Moore, Cleveland County that my
mother's only sister was born 14 Nov. 1906. She also had one brother, William
Lee, b. 1902 in Dallas. In 1907 they moved into Oklahoma City and lived on
Capitol Hill near an aunt of my grandfather's. This aunt, Sarah Kirby Moore
was supposedly a sister to Dr. Freeman, but if the death certificate that I
have is correctly the Sarah of our family, she was a sister to my great grand-
mother. This Sarah was born 8 April 1833 in Indiana. Father, James Mulliken
b. Virginia; mother, a Forbes b. Kentucky. Sarah was married first to a Kirby
and second to a Moore. Not that I hold any great stock in this being helpful
but if I ever find a Freeman who married Mullikin, female ... I can be persuaded
that I am on the right track.

By the late 1908 George and Annie moved back to Dallas, going over into
Stephens County by 1913.
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RECORDS FROM SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA
LEE, RUSSELL, AND SCOTT COUNTIES
(Copied by Mrs. Joris B. Catron, Pennington Gap, Va., for Mrs. R. E. Dishman)

DEEDS:
13 April 1816 - Jonathan Tipton and Rachel, his wife - to John Flamery $335.
70 acres in Turkey Cove - Book 3, page 242

13 September 1815 - John Flanary, Sr. and Phebe, his wife to Aron Spencer -
$400,00. Land on south side of Slacker's '"nmob" - part of grant to Thomas
Campbell, Nov. 1783, 100 acres, beginning on bank of Camp Creek - side of
Cock's fence ''''' to said Flanary's line ..... to beginning.

Signed: John E. and Phebe Flanary, their marks. Book 3, page 249.

27 March 1818 - William Lowden to Daniel Flannery - $200.00. 70 acres, Little
Black Mountain. Signed: William (x) Louden, John N. Howard and James Flannery,
migistrates, acknowledge and record deed. Book 3, page 382.

2 August 1817 - Joshua Ewing, High Sheriff, sold to James and Thomas Flanary
570 acres for bid of $1.96, delinquent taxes due on land of John Melintick.
Book 4, Page 140.

7 Feb. 1825 - John B. Flanary to Stephen Jones - $110.00 - 22 acres in Turkey
Cove, land purchased from Jonathan Tipton. Book 5, page 216.

4 November 1825 - Charles Minter to John Crabtree, Jr. - $100.00 right, title
and interest to tract at Yokum Station, part of two tracts which Thomas Goff
possessed at his decease, and which Charles Minter purchased from Nancy Wood.
Signed: Charles (x) Minter, Polly Minter. Book 5, page 319.

7 January 1826 - John Flanmary to Charles Minter - $600.00

50 acres on south side of Powell River, part of tract bought from George Yokum,
beginning at two white oaks .... to Moses Spemcer's line .... to the mill pond
to beginning. Signed, his mark. Book 5, page 320.

7 January 1826 - John Flanery, Sr. and Phebe, his wife, to Elijah Flanery -
$788.66 - 333 acres, part of a tract bought from George Yokum, pattened in name
of Thomas Campbell. Signed: their marks. Book 5, page 322.

29 July 1826 - John Flanary and Polly, his wife, to Samuel Duff - $650.00 -

70 acres in Turkey Cove, part of tract bought from Jonathan Tipton, beginning

at stake in said Flanary's land Near Nimrod Chrisman's fence .... line of
John Slemp .... to beginning. Signed: John and Polly Flanary. Book 5, page 383.

11 September 1832 - Elijah Flanary and Nancy, his wife to Elijah S. Horton -
$850.00 - 200 acres on Powell River (at Yokum Station) adjoining land of Thomas
Flannary, Edward Whitt, and others. Signed, Elijah Flanary and Nancy(x)
Flanary. Book 6, page 397.

19 November 1832 - James and Thomas Flanary to Samuel Logan, Washington Co.
James and Thomas Flanary being indebted to James S. Vail for $1500. for $1. in
hand, sold to Samuel Logan 620 acres in Turkey Cove, adjoining lands of Henry
Cox and others of the heirs or devises of Jacob Blubough and others. James and
Thomas Flanary to pay to James S. Vail $200.00 before 20 Nov. 1833, $650.00
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before Nov. 20, 1834, $650. before 20 Nov. 1835. Signed:/Thomas (x) Flanary,
James (x) Flanary, Samuel Logan. Book 6, page 409.

14 October 1834 - Thomas and Jamés Flanery to Washington Hobbs $33. 30 acres
on Powell River, beginning .... corner to Shelby and Blewbough.... bank of
Poor Valley branch... to mouth of same.... to middle of river and with the
meander of the same John Pennington's line and with his line to beginning.
Signed, their marks. Book 7, page 10.

6 April 1835 - Esther Graham to William P. Minter - $150.00 - several tracts
of land on Powell River, where William Spencer, deceased, formerly lived.
Signed: Esther Graham. Book 7, page 93.

7 June 1836 - James and Thomas Flanery to John Flannery - $300.00 - 150 acres
on north side of Powell River. Signed: their marks. Book 7, page 179.

12 September 1837 - James Flanery and Rachel, his wife to Thomas Flanery -
$1.00 - 150 acres on Powell River. Signed: James and Rachel Flanmery.
Book 7, page 339.

12 September 1837 - James Flanery and Rachel, his wife and Thomas Flanery and
Betsy, his wife to John Koger. $1700.00 - 250 acres on Powell River, same
tract of land' said John Koger lives on. Signed: James and Rachel Flanery,
Thomas (x) and Elizabeth (x) Flamery. Book 8, page 95.

18 January 1841 - Thomas Flanary and Elizabeth, his wife, to Elkanah Flanary
$225.00 - 175 acres on north side of Wallen's Ridge, beginning at two sugar
trees and pin oaks.... to a beech marked C.R. cornmer to William Spencer's heirs..
to a white walnut..., to a ? branded C.R. from thence to the middle of the Camp
Branch to John D. Spencer's land.... to top of Wallen's Ridge.... and along the
top of said ridge to a stake cormer to Moses Spencer's land.... & cowcumber
(cucumber tree - A.G.C.) marked as a fore and aft line.. to a stake in Thomas
Campbell's line.... to beginning. Signed, their marks., Book 8, page 358.

18 January 1841 - James Flanery and Jemimah, his wife, to Elkanah Flanery $600.-
100 acres on Powell River, beginning at a stake in middle of the branch....
below the head of the deep spring.... dividing the branch to the head so as to
give Flanery half of the spring.... to a sugar tree at a bluff corner to said
Flanary's land.... to two white oaks on James Flanary's line.... in a line of
Thomas Flanery - to Charles Minter to beginning. Signed James and Jemima (x)
Flanary. Book 8, page 261.

4 September 1840 - Washington Hobbs to Silas Flanary - $33. - 30 acres on Powell
River. Signed: George (x) W. Hobbs. Book 8, page 292.

10 November 1856 - Thomas Flanary to James Flanary $1950. - 89 acres.
Signed, his mark. Book 13, page 199.

10 November 1856 - Thomas Flanary to Silas Flanary - $975.00 - 42 acres.
Book 13, page 203

21 January 1859 - Mitchel Cecil, Nathaniel G. Bailey, and James Flanary to
William P, Minter - several tracts of land. Book 14, page 189.
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1 November 1859 - Elkanah Flanary to James M. Flanary, his son, land on north
side of Wallen's Ridge. Book 14, page 315.

9 February 1860 - John Flanary and Zion Flanary, Jackson Co. Missouri, appoint
Elkanah Flanary their true and lawful attorney, to collect from James Flanary,
Lee Co. all he owes them. Book 14, page 386.

3 May 1883 - Elkanah Flanary, Sr. to son, Elbert S. Flanary tract of land,
paying to other heirs (not names) $200.00. Wit: Harvey Young, Henry A.
Tankersley. Proved 21 Aug. 1883. Book 3, page 574.

2 May 1884 - Larkin Heridon, J. E. Hobbs, said D. L. Jessee appraises estate
of Thomas Flanary, deceased. On sale bill, Mary E. Flanary bought ---
Page 593, Will Book 3.

13 1885 E. W. P , administrator of estate of William Flanary,
deceased on page 632. On sale bill, J. J. C. Flanary and Mrs. Sarah Flanary
purchased items;

22 December 1885 - Craig Pennington, D. L. Jessee, and George C. Jesse appointed
to appraise personal property of William F. Flanary, deceased. Page 636

30 August 1888 - S. H. Minter - Names sister, Margaret Minter, other brothers
and sisters, not named. Interest in D. S. Dickinson farm covered by the
widow's dower to Maud, Carlisle H., Charles N. and Nancy J. Willoughby, children
of Charles and Emma Willoughby, all under 21. Signed: Samuel H. Minter.

Wit; John M. Parsons, W. A. M. Baker. Proved 5 Sept. 1888, page 712.

Lee County, Deed Book No. 3. 1813-1820 - page 89
29 Sept. 1814 - William Lyon to William Parsons - 50 acres - land touching
Edward Pennington's at one corner. ¥

Deed Book 2, 1804 - 1813 - page 66

25 August, 1807 - James Huff to Thomas Flamery - 50 acres. South side of
Powels River and bounded - beginning at two beeches "Stallers"? Knob
(Stallard)

Deed Abstracts - Russell County, Virginia (copied from photostats received
from Virginia State Library and Russell County Court House)

13 December, 1794 - James Osborne and Steven Osborn. To: Silace Flannery and
John Marshall - 190 acres on waters of Clinch River. Part of patent granted
to Thomas Osborn 18 May 1786. Signed James Osborn, Stephen Osborn.

Test: John Flannery, Wm. Friley, Wm. Whorton, James Flannery. Recorded Deed
Book 2, page 5, Russell Co., Va. Henry Dickenson, Clerk.

Oct. 7, 1806 - Samuel Ramey to John Flanery and James Flanery - 200 acres on
Copper Creek Ridge. Land granted to Thomas Blackemore - Patent - 26 Sept. 1797,
conveyed to Joseph Whitsley and from him to Samuel Ramey. Signed Samuel Ramey
Recorded Deed Book 4, page 20 Russell Co. Va. Henry Dickenson, Clerk.
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25 September 1807 - William Nash of Sullivan Co. Tenn. - In behalf of Ira
Nash of Louisian Territory Deistrict of St. Louis, to Silas Flannery of
Russell County, Va. - 230 acres more or less lying in the Rye Cove in Russell
County on the waters of Clinch River. Part of tract granted to William Nash
by patent 24 Dec. 1782, being part of tract that Samuel Guthrey purchased of
said Ira Nash. Wit: Reuben Jones, James Jones, John Pendleton.

Recorded Deed Book 4, page 194 Russell Co. Va. James P, Carrell, D.-C.

4 February 1817 - James Flannery, John Flannery, Silas Flannery, Isaac '
Flannery, John Marshall and wife, Elizabeth, Griffith Dickenson and wife
Rebecca, Simpson Cash and wife Edee, Present Adkins and wife Nancy, Reuben
Fraley and wife Mary, John McGommery and wife Sarah, to George Gose 190 acres
on waters of Clinch River. Signed by above - affadavit by John Smyth and
Ezekiel Burdine. Recorded Deed Book 5, page 542, James P. Carrell, D. C.

Note: George Gose's son, Jno. A. Gose, was living in Lamer County, Texas in
1872,

25 January 1817 - James Sargent to David Munery - 114 acres on waters of
Sinking Creek. Signed by James Sargent and wife Susannah. Recorded Deed
Book 5, page 544.

July 19, 1826 - Heirs of James Ervin to John Forguson - 54 acres lying in
Russell County, Va. on side of spur of Clinch Mountain. Signed by heirs of
James Ervin, deceased, as follows: Nancy Ervin, John Flanary, Polly Flanary,
Silas Flanary, Nancy Flanary, James Ervin, Miles Arvin (Ervin also spelled
Arvin). Affadavits by Benjn. Davis and Benjn. Thompkim. Recorded Deed Book
7, page 321 Russell Co. Va. James P, Carroll, Clk.

3 Oct. 1825 - Henry Smith, Jr. and wife, Elizabeth to James P. Strother,
50 acres lying in New Garden, Russell Co. part of original grant to Philip
Crums. Recorded Deed Book 7, page 323, Russell Co. Va.

19 August 1826 - Deed of trust James Dougherty to Charles C. Johnston.
Recorded 5th Sept. 1826 Deed Book 7, page 321 Russell Co. Va.

Deed and Will Records from Scott County, Virginia

Deed Book 6, p. 29 - 4 sept. 1838 - William P. Minter and Mary, his wife, to
Mary and William Stewart 78 acres; signed William P. Minter, Mary (x) Minter.

Deed Book 7, page 53 - 4 Aug. 1842 - Nimrod Taylor and Judith his wife, to
Hiram K. Pendleton, Rye Cove, Scott County.

Deed Book 7, page 293 - 20 Nov. 1843 - Iry N. Pendleton and Rosamond, his
wife to James Pendleton - 145 acres of land.

Deed Book 7, page 222 - 29 July 1843- Ira N. Pendleton and Rosey, his wife
to William Horton - 54 acres in Rye Cove, Scott Co.

Deed Book 8, page 77 - 18 January 1845 - John Pendleton and Jemina, his wife,
William G. Pendleton and Charlotte, his wife, Hiram K. Pendleton and Eliza,his
wife, Iry T. Pendleton and Phebe, his wofe to Granville W. Kilgore - 150 acres
in Rye Cove, Scott County. (Note: William G. Pendleton and family settled in
Collin County, Texas in 1850's)
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Deed Book 9, page 46 - 29 April 1848 - James Pendleton to grandsons, Robert
and Iry Pendleton, sons of James Pendleton, all his land (amount not given)
Deed of gift.

Deed Book 9, page 18 - 15 Feb. 1848 - Elisha W. Pendleton to William Horton
60+70 acres in Rye Cove.

Will Book 2, page 137 - Memo or property belonging to the estate of Anthony
Minter, deceased. William P. Minter, administrator; appraisers: Zac Fugate,
Presley Carter, William Ervin. Ordered to be recorded l4th Feb. 1833.
Attest: J. L, Martin, C, L. C.

Will Book 3, page 161 - 29 April, 1848 -James Pendleton;wife,Polly & Sister,Sally
Stanly, Son John S. Pendleton, dau. Jamina Hill, dau. Molly Boatright, son

James Jamina, Louisa, Robert, Iry, all children of son James.

Signed: James (x) Pendleton. Wit: Isaac Greear, William F. Greear,

Silas Fraysure. Will proved 13 June, 1848.

Deed Book 1, page 127 - April 1, 1816 - John Pendleton and Jemina, his wife, to
Jesse Conn. 50 acres on south side of Clinch River.

Deed Book 2, page 185 - 13 April 1819 - John Pendleton to John and Silas
Pendleton, sons of James Pendleton - 150 acres on south side of Clinch River.

Deed Book 2, page 356 - 20 August, 1822 - Sam Spencer and Elizabeth, his wife,
to Samuel Pendleton.

Deed Book 3, page 317 - 24 October 1826 - Samuel Pendleton and Rebecca, his
wife to James Spencer - 50 acres of land.

Deed Book 3, page 330 - 6 September 1826 - Reuben Pendleton to William
Pendleton - 30 acres land in Rye Cove.

Deed Book 5, page 9, 1822 - John L. Pendleton and Mary, his wife and Silas
Pendleton and Nancy, his wife, of Scott County to Jesse Conn. 150 acres.

Deed Book 5, page 369 14 September, 1836 - Circuit Superior Court of Law and
Chancery, Scott Co. In cause between William P. Minter, plaintiff, and Richard
Smith, Jeremiah Warden, John H. Warden, and Benjamin Warden, Henry Smith,
attorney for Richard Smith of London and also attorney for Warden.

Robert Dickinson, executor of Henry Dickinson, deceased, who was the agent of
said Richard Smith and Wardens, Judith Minter, Charles Minter, Thomas Babb and
Elizabeth, his wife; Landon C. Minter, James Baker and Mariah, his wife,
William H. Biggs and Hannah, his wife, and James Flanery and Polly, his wife,
defendants. Ordered that Thomas G. Martin, who was appointed Commissioner
convey the two tracts of land mentioned in the complainants bill from the said
Jeremiah Warden, John H. Warden, and Benjamin H. Warden, to said Commissioner.

Will Book 3, page 194 - 28 Feb. 1849 - Prob. 13 March, 1849 - Silas Flanary
Christena, Frazier, wife of Thomas S. Frazier; Delila Young, wife of Abraham
Young; Phebe Young, wife of David Young; Rebecca Hampton, wife of Hamilton
Brown Hampton; Elkanah Flanary; Lucinda Spencer, wife of Robert Preston Spencer;
James Flanary and heirs; and Louisa and Lucinda Flanary, children of son Silas
Flanary, deceased. Executor: Dale Carter; Witnesses: Thomas D. Carter,
Wilborn P. Neely, Benjamin Bolton.
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(Note: Silas and son James, and Minter, of Nelle Flanery
Dishman)

Will Book 2, page 138 - Inventory and tpmi.nl of personal estate of Jacob
Flanery, deceased. William B. Flanary administrator. 3
Signed Samuel Pridemore, Jmthln Hale, Grtlen Neil.

Recorded 12 June, 1833.

List of sales of penonl]. estate mob fhn.ry, deceased made 2 Feb, 1833,

Will Book 6, page 122 - Personal nnu of John L. Pendleton, dum.d.
appraised 29 Jan. 1869.
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